City of
s&¢2% Richmond Agenda

City Council

Council Chambers, City Hall
6911 No. 3 Road

Monday, June 25, 2018
7:00 p.m.

Pg. # ITEM

MINUTES

1. Motion to:

(1) adopt the minutes of the Regular Council meeting held on June 11,
2018 (distributed previously); and

CNCL-11 (2) adopt the minutes of the Regular Council meeting for Public
Hearings held on June 18, 2018.

AGENDAADDITIONS & DELETIONS

PRESENTATIONS

CNCL-27 (1) Rebecca Tunnacliffe, CEO, British Columbia Recreation and Parks
Association, to present the Facility Excellence Award for projects over
$1 million for the City Centre Community Centre, and the Program
Excellence Award, recognizing a creative, successful and innovative
program that serves as a model for other recreation and parks agencies
to enhance their services, for the Pollinator Pasture.

(2) Grant Fengstad, Director, Information Technology, to present the
Smart 50 award honouring the 50 most transformative smart projects in
2018 in recognition of the City’s initial development of MyRichmond.
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(3) Jerry Chong, Director, Finance and Ted Townsend, Director, Corporate
Communications and Marketing, to present the Canadian Award for
Financial Reporting and the Award for Outstanding Achievement in
Popular Annual Financial Reporting from the Government Finance
Officers Association of the United States and Canada for the City’s
2016 Annual Reports.

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

2. Motion to resolve into Committee of the Whole to hear delegations on
agenda items.

3. Delegations from the floor on Agenda items.

PLEASE NOTE THAT FOR LEGAL REASONS, DELEGATIONS ARE
NOT PERMITTED ON ZONING OR OCP AMENDMENT BYLAWS
WHICH ARE TO BE ADOPTED.

4. Motion to rise and report.

RATIFICATION OF COMMITTEE ACTION

CONSENT AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE THAT ITEMS APPEARING ON THE CONSENT
AGENDA WHICH PRESENT A CONFLICT OF INTEREST FOR
COUNCIL MEMBERS MUST BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT
AGENDA AND CONSIDERED SEPARATELY.

CONSENT AGENDA HIGHLIGHTS

=  Receipt of Committee minutes

= 2017 Annual Report and 2017 Annual Report — Highlights

= UBCM Resolution — Safety Regulations For Trampoline Parks
=  BC Energy Step Code

CNCL -2
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CNCL-30
CNCL-36
CNCL-58
CNCL-64

CNCL-71

CNCL-80

5870122

ITEM

Land use applications for first reading (to be further considered at the
Public Hearing on July 16, 2018):

= Application by YKLM Art Space Co. Ltd. for a Temporary
Commercial Use Permit at 4211 No. 3 Road

= 7960 Alderbridge Way and 5333 & 5411 No. 3 Road — Rezone from
CA to ZMU34 (0989705 BC Ltd. — applicant)

= 7811 Alderbridge Way - Rezone from IR1 to RCL2 (7811
Alderbridge Holding Corp Inc. — applicant)

Public Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Expansion
Boundary Road Drainage Memorandum of Understanding

Motion to adopt Items No. 6 through No. 14 by general consent.

COMMITTEE MINUTES

That the minutes of:

1)
()
©)
(4)

()

the Community Safety Committee meeting held on June 12, 2018;

the General Purposes Committee meeting held on June 18, 2018;

the Planning Committee meeting held on June 19, 2018; and

the Public Works and Transportation Commitiee meeting held on
June 20, 2018; and

the Council/School Board Liaison Committee meeting held on
April 25, 2018;

be received for information.

2017 ANNUAL REPORT AND 2017 ANNUAL REPORT -

HIGHLIGHTS
(File Ref. No.) (REDMS No. 5831853)

See Page CNCL-80 for full report

FINANCE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

That the reports titled, “2017 Annual Report” and the “2017 Annual Report
— Highlights” be approved.
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CNCL-176

CNCL-182

5870122

ITEM

UBCM RESOLUTION - SAFETY REGULATIONS FOR

TRAMPOLINE PARKS
(File Ref. No. 12-8275-01) (REDMS No. 5860738 v. 2)

See Page CNCL-176 for full report

GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

That the proposed UBCM resolution titled “Safety Regulations for
Trampoline Parks” be submitted to the Union of BC Municipalities as
outlined in the staff report titled “UBCM Resolution — Safety Regulations
for Trampoline Parks”, dated May 31, 2018, from the General Manager,
Community Safety.

BC ENERGY STEP CODE
(File Ref. No. 10-6125-07-02) (REDMS No. 5827315 v. 4)

See Page CNCL-182 for full report

GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

(1) That Building Regulation Bylaw No. 7230, Amendment Bylaw No.
9769, which adds Part 10 Energy Step Code, be introduced and given
first reading;

(2) That Richmond Zoning Bylaw No. 8500, Amendment Bylaw No.
9845, which amends Sections 3.4, 4.2.1, 433 and 4.4.1, be
introduced and given first reading;

(3) That Richmond Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 9000,
Amendment Bylaw No. 9771, which amends Sections 12.4 and
14.2.10.A, be introduced and given first reading;

(4) That Richmond Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 7100,
Amendment Bylaw No. 9770, which amends Sections 2.2.3 and 2.5,
be introduced and given first reading;

(5) That Bylaw 9771 and Bylaw 9770, having been considered in
conjunction with:

(a) the City’s Financial Plan and Capital Program; and

(b) the Greater Vancouver Regional District Solid Waste and
Liquid Waste Management Plans;

are hereby found to be consistent with said programs and plans, in
accordance with 477(3)(a) of the Local Government Act;
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ITEM

(6)

(")

(8)

9)

(10)

11)

That Bylaw 9771 and Bylaw 9770, having been considered in
accordance with Official Community Plan Bylaw Preparation
Consultation Policy 5043, are hereby found not to require further
consultation;

That the creation of a two-year temporary full time Building Energy
Specialist, partially funded by a $100,000 contribution from BC
Hydro, with remaining salary and benefits of $130,000 fully
recovered through building permit fees, be endorsed and that the
Chief Administrative Officer and General Manager, Engineering and
Public Works be authorized to enter into a funding agreement with
BC Hydro to support the Building Energy Specialist position;

That the creation of new Plan Reviewer and Building Inspector 1
positions, with total salary and benefits of $200,000 fully recovered
through building permit fees, be endorsed;

That the Consolidated 5 Year Financial Plan (2018-2022) be
amended to include the temporary full-time Building Energy
Specialist, Plan Reviewer, and Building Inspector 1 positions funded
by an increase in grant revenue and building permit fees;

That the Energy Step Code training programs identified in the staff
report titled "BC Energy Step Code™ dated May 5, 2018, from the
Senior Manager, Sustainability and District Energy, and Acting
Director, Building Approvals, be approved with $110,000 from the
Carbon Tax Provision, as funded in the 2018 Operating Budget; and

That for Part 3 and Townhouse developments, notwithstanding the
adoption of Building Regulation Bylaw No. 7230, Amendment Bylaw
No. 9769:

(@) If a Development Permit has been issued prior to September 1,
2018, the owner may, while their Development Permit remains
valid, apply for a Building Permit in compliance with the energy
efficiency requirements applicable prior to the adoption of
Bylaw 9769; and

(b) If an acceptable Development Permit application has been
submitted to the City prior to the adoption of Bylaw 9769, the
owner may, until December 31, 2019, apply for a Building
Permit in compliance with the energy efficiency requirements
applicable prior to the adoption of Bylaw 9769.
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CNCL-222

CNCL-238

5870122

ITEM

10.

11.

APPLICATION BY YKLM ART SPACE CO. LTD. FOR A

TEMPORARY COMMERCIAL USE PERMIT AT 4211 NO. 3 ROAD
(File Ref. No. TU 18-803320) (REDMS No. 5854857)

See Page CNCL-222 for full report

PLANNING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

That the application by YKLM Art Space Co. Ltd. for a Temporary
Commercial Use Permit (TCUP) for property at 4211 No. 3 Road be
considered at the Public Hearing to be held July 16, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. in the
Council Chambers of Richmond City Hall; and that the following
recommendation be forwarded to that meeting for consideration:

“That a Temporary Commercial Use Permit be issued to YKLM Art
Space Co. Ltd. for property at 4211 No. 3 Road to allow ‘Auction,
Minor’ as a permitted use for a period of three years.”

APPLICATION BY 0989705 BC LTD. FOR REZONING AT 7960
ALDERBRIDGE WAY AND 5333 & 5411 NO. 3 ROAD FROM
"AUTO-ORIENTED COMMERCIAL (CA)" TO "CITY CENTRE

HIGH DENSITY MIXED USE (ZMU34) - LANSDOWNE VILLAGE™
(File Ref. No. 12-8060-20-009825; RZ 15-692485) (REDMS No. 5776888 v. 5)

See Page CNCL-238 for full report

PLANNING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

(1) That Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500, Amendment Bylaw 9825 to
create the “City Centre High Density Mixed Use (ZMU34) -
Lansdowne Village™ zone, and to rezone 7960 Alderbridge Way and
5333 & 5411 No. 3 Road from “Auto-Oriented Commercial (CA)” to
“City Centre High Density Mixed Use (ZMU34) - Lansdowne
Village”, be introduced and given first reading; and

(2) That staff be directed to prepare a service area bylaw to provide
district energy services to the development at 7960 Alderbridge Way
and 5333 & 5411 No. 3 Road.
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CNCL-324

CNCL-383

5870122

ITEM

12.

13.

APPLICATION BY ONNI 7811 ALDERBRIDGE HOLDING CORP
INC. FOR REZONING AT 7811 ALDERBRIDGE WAY FROM THE
“INDUSTRIAL RETAIL (IR1)” ZONE TO THE

“RESIDENTIAL/LIMITED COMMERCIAL (RCL2)” ZONE
(File Ref. No. 12-8060-20-009867; RZ 17-765420) (REDMS No. 5813659 v. 2)

See Page CNCL-324 for full report

PLANNING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

That Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500, Amendment Bylaw 9867, for the
rezoning of 7811 Alderbridge Way from the “Industrial Retail (IR1)” zone
to the “Residential/Limited Commercial (RCL2)” zone, be introduced and
given first reading.

PUBLIC ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING INFRASTRUCTURE

EXPANSION
(File Ref. No. 10-6125-07-02) (REDMS No. 5843707 v. 14)

See Page CNCL-383 for full report

PUBLIC WORKS AND  TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE
RECOMMENDATION

That, as described in the staff report titled, ""Public Electric Vehicle
Charging Infrastructure Expansion™ dated May 18th 2018 from the Senior
Manager, Sustainability & District Energy:

(1) publicly accessible electric vehicle charging infrastructure be
installed at City Hall and Richmond Olympic Oval, with funding
from the 2017 Capital Budget;

(2) pending the successful award of the City’s application to Natural
Resources Canada’s Electric Vehicle and Alternative Fuel
Infrastrcture Deployment Initiative grant, staff be directed to report
back with any additional capital budget approval for further
expansion of charging infrastructure; and

(3) a cost recovery approach to impose user fees and time limits for
publicly accessible electric vehicle charging stations be endorsed as
outlined in the report, and that staff be directed to bring forward
amendments to the Consolidated Fees Bylaw No. 8636, the Traffic
Bylaw No. 5870, Parking (Off-Street) Regulation Bylaw No. 7403,
and the Notice of Bylaw Violation Dispute Adjudication Bylaw
No. 8122 to implement this cost recovery approach.
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CNCL-394

5870122

ITEM

14.

BOUNDARY ROAD DRAINAGE MEMORANDUM OF

UNDERSTANDING
(File Ref. No. 10-6000-01) (REDMS No. 5804141 v. 6)

See Page CNCL-394 for full report

PUBLIC  WORKS  AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE
RECOMMENDATION

(1) That the Chief Administrative Officer and the General Manager,
Engineering be authorized to execute, on behalf of the City, a
Memorandum of Understanding between the City and the City of
New Westminster containing the material terms and conditions set
out in the staff report titled, “Boundary Road Drainage
Memorandum of Understanding” dated May 25, 2018 from the
Acting Director, Engineering;

(2) That the 5 Year Financial Plan (2018-2022) be amended to fund the
City’s share of fronting costs for the Boundary Road Pump Station
upgrade of $960,000 from the Drainage Improvement Reserve and
the estimated annual operating cost of $4,475 be incorporated into
the 2019 Budget; and

(3) That staff bring forward updates to the Works and Services Cost
Recovery Bylaw No. 8752 to include recovery of the fronting costs for
the Boundary Road Pump Station upgrade from benefiting
developments in the Thompson Boundary Area.

*khkhkhhkhkkkhkhkhkhihhikhhkhhiikx

CONSIDERATION OF MATTERS REMOVED FROM THE
CONSENT AGENDA

*hhkkhkkikkhkkkikkhkkkhkhkkikikkikikiiikk

NON-CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
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FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES DIVISION

15. COUNCIL REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES FOR 2017
(File Ref. No. 03-1200-03) (REDMS No. 5869199)

CNCL-399 See Page CNCL-399 for full report

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

That the Council Remuneration and Expenses report for the year ended
December 31, 2017 be received for information.

16. 2017 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
(File Ref. No. 03-1200-03) (REDMS No. 5871410)

CNCL-401 See Page CNCL-401 for full report

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
That the 2017 Statement of Financial Information be approved.

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS AND EVENTS

NEW BUSINESS

BYLAWS FOR ADOPTION

CNCL-479 Election and Political Signs Bylaw No. 8713, Amendment Bylaw No. 9887
Opposed at 1%/2"/3" Readings — ClIr. Day.

CNCL-481 Civic Election Administration and Procedure Bylaw No. 7244, Amendment
Bylaw No. 9888
Opposed at 15/2"/3" Readings — None.

CNCL -9
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CNCL-484 Richmond Zoning Bylaw No. 8500, Amendment Bylaw No. 9765
(9600/9620 Glenacres Drive, RZ 17-772629)
Opposed at 1% Reading — None.
Opposed at 2"/3" Readings — None.

ADJOURNMENT

CNCL - 10
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British Columbia
Recreation and Parks

Association

Our Story 473

ﬁ»

o3

ﬁ.
.

i S i kb

The British Columbia Recreation and Parks
Association (BCRPA), a not for profit organization,
plays a central role in leading the enrichment and
improvement of the quality of life of British Columbians
and their communities. We do this by championing

the power of recreation and parks. This year, we

are celebrating our 60th anniversary by proudly
commemorating our transformative journey to the
present day, and revealing a glimpse into our future.

Ours is a story of creating community
connectedness and individual well-being
based on the knowledge and recognition that recreation
and active living, as well as access to parks and the
natural environment, have significant impacts on our
physical and mental health.

Recreation began as an ad-hoc collection of activities
developed by municipal commissions, volunteer

organizations, clubs, churches, and cultural organizations.

By the 1950s, the development of more formal
approaches to parks, recreation and culture services
were taking shape. In 1957, a committee was
formed to look at establishing a recreation
association in BC, and in May 1958, that committee
became the British Columbia Recreation Association
(BCRA). The BCRA unified the sector, providing a voice
to advocate for and promote recreation and parks that
continues today.

Within a decade, this new collective power
was giving recreation a seat at the table of
the provincial government to influence policy and steer
funding. The Association professionalized the sector,
helped establish formal education, channeled program
funding opportunities, and championed public access to
natural urban and rural space. In 1981, BCRA emphasized
its role in parks by increasing parks advocacy and
changing its name to British Columbia Recreation and
Parks Association.

CNCL - 27
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Vancouver Archives: “Pro-Rec” members putting on a display. Vancouver, BC ca 1940

In 1984, we created the BCRPA Fitness Leader
registration program that maintains the highest
professional standards for fitness leaders in BC. Our
registration status is recognized as ‘the’ standard against
which the qualifications of a fitness leader may be
measured and we are widely regarded as the regulatory
body for fitness professionals throughout the Province.

BCRPA has been so influential that our name
is synonymous with recreation and parks. Our
sphere of influence includes local governments (90% are
active members of BCRPA), senior government, non-
profit and community organizations, the private sector,
the fitness industry and academia. BCRPA is the driving
force behind successful government-funded community-
based recreation and parks initiatives that number in the
dozens over recent years.

Moving forward, the future of BCRPA is

most promising as we continue to support senior
government in meeting provincial health and physical
activity goals through the development and delivery of
community-based recreation programs; work to fulfill
the vision of the national Framework for Recreation

in Canada; and create more cross-sector partnerships

to continue to champion the power of recreation and
parks. The benefit to British Columbians from our work is
improved health and quality of life.

BC RECREATION AND
PARKS ASSOCIATION

WWW.BCRPA.BC.CA



133INNOD ¢ HOI4N3 « VY31 « YdHD9

uoljedoyiyied ssauly

s1apea ssauylg 10} spiepuejs [epulnodd 3saybIy ay3 JaAlRQ e

P24915169Y 104 S924n0Sal pue poddns puedx]

Dg JO uolzepuno4 uoneaIday ayj Joddng e

p|ay syJed pue UOI3RIDOSSY
uolealdal ur asoyl yum sdiysuonejas usdasg uoleaIdayY 1 syied ueipeue) ayy poddng e

slaquuaw pJieog pue ‘yeis ul
9JUD9||90Xa yoddns pue aJidsu| o mvtmo_ pue uoljealdal JO Py 2y] O} bpbub?) Ul UOI1D2123Y 10) IOMaWDbI{ Y/
pue sisqwaW INO 0] JUueA9|al pue 9|gISIA 9 Jo Co_HchwEw_QE_ s.elquinjo) ysiug pea e

9sodind 1no yym paubije
saniunlioddo snusanai dojaasq e sod130e1d 159q pue sbpajmouy| Jo abueydxs $31IUNWWOD P33daUu0d ‘AYyjesy buipsoddns
3y} pue juswdo|aAap [euoissajoid a)eyjidey 0} [e1uassa se syJed pue uoneasnal uoidwey) e

Juswanosdwi
SNONUIIUOD DeIquI] e

JuBl|isaY 99 B SAUYL &

All43dSOdd
TVYNOILYZINYDYHO

uoI1eIDOSSY Y1 Ul Wyl abebua
pue J3Y10 Yoes 01 SIaquaW INOo 1d3Uu0)

buip|ing diysuonejas ybnoayy
Syed pue uoiealda Jo 1oedwli Sy} MDURAPY e

diysiaquiapy ayj) abebu3z 3 uayibuains @
S3IDIAH3S PuUe 1H40ddNS dIHSYIGNIIN

ldd D153

A31)1geIUNODY ‘ssauaAisuodsay ‘ANAneal) ‘Buidauu0)) ‘AUAISNdU|

syded 73 UOI}eIIDY DURAPY ©
dIHSH3Av3al

SANTVA

1031eo3Nnp3 I9PIA0I{ DIAISS 103O3UUOD) ‘I0JRAIDY “I9pedT] mm_n_om

syJed pue uoneasdal Jo Jamod ay3 ybnouyy

S9IHUNWIWOD JI3Y} pUe S[eNPIAIPUI JO JUSWIYDLIUD 3y} ped| o 3150ddNd
T a4
ueiqwin|o) ysiiug A19A9 Jo 941 Jo Aljenb ay3 buiroidwi 03 pue
‘S3IIUNWIWIOD P3123UU0D pue ‘AYyjjeay ‘DAide 0} [elIuUdSsd
Se pan|eA aJe syJed pue uol}eaid9y

NOISIA

NOILYIDOSSY SHdvd
ANV NOILY3dD3d D4

vVdao4a

‘I
=

NV1d DI931VHlS



~—
BCRPA

BC RECREATION AND
PARKS ASSOCIATION

British Columbia Recreation and Parks Association
Excellence Awards 2018

BCRPA’s Annual Provincial Awards of Excellence recognize distinct achievement at the municipal,
regional, and/or special interest area level for programs and facilities that have a significant impact in
local recreation and parks.

On May 2, 2018 at the BCRPA’s Annual Symposium, the City of Richmond received two Awards of
Excellence for the following:

Facility Excellence Award for the City Centre Community Centre

Program Excellence Award for the Pollinator Pasture Program

Facility Excellence Award

This honour recognizes outstanding innovation in facility concept, design development, maintenance or
operation in a facility. The awards committee chose The City Centre Community Centre as this year’s
winter because it is a vibrant example of sustainability, reflective of extensive community consultation,
and brings to life an accessible, creative space that provides enhanced fitness and multi-purpose
opportunities.

Program Excellence Award

This honour recognizes creative, successful and innovative programs which may serve as a model for
other recreation and parks agencies to enhance their services. The awards committee was impressed by
the Pollinator Pasture because of its multi-layered approach to program and community engagement.
The high value project brought together hundreds of individuals, community groups, associations and
businesses through collective opportunities to build a community gathering space and educational
program that is both a public art project, as well as a habitat for pollinators. This program was lauded for
not only increasing pollination but for engaging the wide community in its interests.

There were over twenty nominations for the 2018 awards. The City of Richmond has every reason to be

extremely proud of its public engagement and community development as reflected in the achievement
of these two highly coveted awards.
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Community Safety Committee
Tuesday, June 12, 2018

5868977

In response to questions from Committee, Carli Edwards, Manager,
Community Bylaws and Licencing, advised that the nine short-term rental
violations noted in the staff report were from a range of properties including a
house operating as a bed and breakfast without a licence to strata condo units
being rented out short-term. Ms. Edwards further remarked that staff have not
found Airbnb to be the most frequent offender.

Lloyd Bie, Acting Director, Engineering, in reply to queries from Committee
regarding grease management and public education, advised that the City does
not send any direct mail outs other than what is included with residents
utilities bill.

In response to a query regarding stop-work-orders issued by the Soil Officer
in April 2018, Ms. Edwards advised Committee that they did not include the
Garden City Lands site.

Ms. Edwards, in further response to questions from Committee, commented
that (i) proposals for the Public Bike Share Pilot Program are being evaluated
by staff, (ii) business licence fees are set to ensure recovery of costs
associated with granting a licence, (iii) staff are assessing options for granting
short-term licences for businesses that operate in the City on a short-term
basis, such as food trucks, and (iv) staff work with business operators, such as
bike rentals and other newer business concepts, when they apply for a
business licence to complete necessary plans and put forward any required
bylaw amendments to Council.

In response to queries regarding dog licencing, Ms. Edwards remarked that (i)
staff are reviewing amendments to the categories and pricing structure of dog
licences to address the excess of categories currently in place, (ii) the
Regional Animal Protection Society (RAPS) has an agreement to sell dog
licences on behalf of the City, and RAPS receives a portion of the proceeds,
and (iii) information regarding obtaining a dog licence through RAPS is
available on the City’s website.

It was moved and seconded

That the staff report titled “Community Bylaws Monthly Activity Report -
April 2018”7, dated June 5, 2018, from the General Manager, Community
Safety, be received for information.

CARRIED

RICHMOND FIRE-RESCUE MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT -
APRIL 2018

(File Ref. No. 09-5000-01) (REDMS No. 5844207 v. 2)

In response to a query from Committee, Time Wilkinson, Fire Chief, noted
that the new When to Make a Call brochure, would be distributed to
Committee.
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Community Safety Committee
Tuesday, June 12, 2018

5868977

Mr. Wilkinson provided clarification in response to Committee inquiries
regarding incident response time and remarked that the report details the time
between when a call is received to when Richmond Fire-Rescue (RFR) arrive
on scene. He also noted that response times may vary based on personal
protective equipment (PPE) requirements and that more time is allotted for
those events that require PPE. Mr. Wilkinson further remarked that the
average time is not the National Fire Protection Association’s (NFPA)
standard which is to the 90™ percentile and clarified that RFR follows NFPA
standards.

In further response to queries from Committee, Mr. Wilkinson noted that
generally the location of a fire station does not impact response times,
including those districts that may require a further travel distance for
response. Mr. Wilkinson commented further that staff are working on
automatic aid opportunities with Delta, Vancouver, and New Westminster to
coordinate responses and a report will be brought forward to Committee
regarding the matter.

In response to queries from Committee regarding a report on RFR
implementation and evaluation, staff advised Committee that the report is
forthcoming in the fall in time for operating budget considerations. Discussion
took place on the need for Committee review prior to the budget review, and
there was agreement among Committee to discuss the matter at the next
meeting,

It was moved and seconded

That the staff report titled “Richmond Fire-Rescue Monthly Activity Report
— April 2018”, dated May 22, 2018 from the Fire Chief, Richmond Fire-
Rescue, be received for information.

CARRIED
FIRE CHIEF BRIEFING
(Verbal Report)
(i)  Introduction of New Staff

Mr. Wilkinson introduced Alan McGrath And Jim Wishlove as the two new
Deputy Fire Chiefs.

(ii)  Brighouse Fire Hall No. 1 Opening

Mr., Wilkinson informed Committee that the grand opening of the new
Brighouse Fire Hall No. 1 will be held on June 23, 2018 from 11 am. to 2
p.m. He advised that the formal ceremony will commence at 11:30 a.m. and
that self-guided tours and demonstrations will be available.

(iii)  Steveston Salmon Festival

Mr. Wilkinson noted that RFR will be involved with the parade and a variety
of other community engagement activities at the festival.
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Community Safety Committee
Tuesday, June 12, 2018

5868977

(iv) Community Outreach and Public Education Plan (COPEP) Update

Mr. Wilkinson advised that staff are working on community outreach
programs and highlighted the following:

. fire safety education for students will be provided in conjunction with
the school district to provide information to grades 2, 8 and 12;

. the school program would include basic information provided to grade
2 classes, assemblies and presentations that focus on home safety
including cooking for grade 8 classes, and adult fire safety for grade 12
classes;

" staff are working with Kwantlen Polytechnic University on the design
of different brochures;

. the initiation of a “Butt-out Campaign” which will distribute signs
throughout various locations around the City in English and Mandarin
to denote where preventable fires have been located throughout the
city;

. the Justice Institute assisted RFR staff with the Doors Open Richmond
event which welcomed over 1800 visitors to the No. 3 fire hall during
the two day event; and

= requests for new staff for the community outreach area will be included
in the operational budget submissions for 2019.

(vy  New BC Emergency Health Services Dispatch System

Mr. Wilkinson advised that there is little information regarding the new
process at this time. He further noted that the updated system, the Manchester
Triage Scoring System, was launched on May 30, 2018 and that it
incorporates a new model using a new colour-coding system.

RCMP MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT — APRIL 2018

(File Ref. No. 09-5000-01) (REDMS No. 5806458 v. 4)

Will Ng, Superintendent, Officer in Charge, offered additional comments
regarding the crime statistics and noted that April 2018’s statistics for
assaults, serious assaults, and sexual assaults were slightly above threshold;
however there were no noted patterns or trends.
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Community Safety Committee
Tuesday, June 12, 2018

5868977

In response to questions from Committee, Supt. Ng advised that (i) Richmond
RCMP are currently working with Vancouver Coastal Health on the mobile
mental health response program (Car 67 Program) and are awaiting security
clearances for the two nurses selected for the program prior to its initiation
expected for September 2018, (ii) of the two murders in April 2018, one was
drug related and the other is currently under investigation, (iii) Richmond has
traditionally had a low homicide rate and six out of the eight homicides in
2017 were attributed to organized crime, (iv) crime rates in Richmond are
traditionally low and officers have been working to be more visible in the
community, and (v) the decrease in auxiliary constables hours for April 2018
was due to changes in federal regulations that no longer allow auxiliary
constables to attend ride-alongs.

It was moved and seconded

That the report titled “RCMP Monthly Activity Report — April 2018”, dated
May 17, 2018, from the Officer in Charge, Richmond RCMP Detachment,
be received for information.

CARRIED

2017-2018 RICHMOND RCMP DETACHMENT ANNUAL
PERFORMANCE PLAN FOURTH QUARTER RESULTS
(JANUARY 1 TO MARCH 31, 2018)

(File Ref. No. 09-5000-01) (REDMS No. 5784884 v. 4)

Supt. Ng highlighted that the 16 officers approved by Council have now been
approved by Ottawa. He further noted that Richmond RCMP are working to
staff offices.

It was moved and seconded

That the report titled “2017-2018 Richmond RCMP Detachment Annual
Performance Plan Fourth Quarter Results (January 1 to March 31, 2018)”,
dated May 17, 2018 from the Officer in Charge, Richmond RCMP
Detachment, be received for information.

CARRIED
RCMP/OIC BRIEFING
(Verbal Report)
(i)  Doors Open event at Richmond RCMP

Supt. Ng remarked that this was the first year Richmond RCMP had
participated and noted that there were only enough resources to attend to one
day, where approximately 850 visitors were welcomed.

(ii)  Coffee with a Cop at Aberdeen Centre and Ironwood McDonalds

Supt. Ng noted that there was a large turnout for both events.
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COMMITTEE STANDING ITEM

E-Comm

The Chair advised that the Strategic Planning sessions will continue until
September 7, 2018 and that the results would be brought forward to
Committee.

MANAGER’S REPORT

Illegal Taxi Enforcement

Ms. Edwards provided an update to Committee regarding another round of
enforcement of illegal taxis and advised that staff will resume enforcement at
the end of this month.

ADJOURNMENT

[t was moved and seconded
That the meeting adjourn (4:39 p.m.).

CARRIED

Certified a true and correct copy of the
Minutes of the meeting of the Community
Safety Committee of the Council of the
City of Richmond held on Tuesday, June
12, 2018.

Councillor Bill McNulty Amanda Welby

Chair

5868977

Legislative Services Coordinator
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Date:

Place:

Present:

Call to Order:

City of
Richmond Minutes

General Purposes Committee

Monday, June 18, 2018

Anderson Room
Richmond City Hall

Mayor Malcolm D. Brodie, Chair
Councillor Chak Au

Councillor Derek Dang

Councillor Carol Day

Councillor Ken Johnston

Councillor Alexa Loo (entered at 4:03 p.m.)
Councillor Bill McNulty

Councillor Linda McPhail

Councillor Harold Steves

The Chair called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.

AGENDAADDITION

[t was moved and seconded
That “Richmond Sports Council Facility Needs Assessment 2018” be added
to the agenda as Item 4.

CARRIED

MINUTES

[t was moved and seconded
That the minutes of the meeting of the General Purposes Committee held on
June 4, 2018, be adopted as circulated.

CARRIED
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COMMUNITY SAFETY DIVISION
UBCM RESOLUTION - SAFETY REGULATIONS FOR
TRAMPOLINE PARKS

(File Ref. No. 12-8275-01) (REDMS No. 5860738 v. 2)

It was moved and seconded

That the proposed UBCM resolution titled “Safety Regulations for
Trampoline Parks” be submitted to the Union of BC Municipalities as
outlined in the staff report titled “UBCM Resolution — Safety Regulations
Sor Trampoline Parks”, dated May 31, 2018, from the General Manager,
Community Safety.

CARRIED

Councillor Loo entered the meeting (4:03 p.m.).

COMMUNITY SERVICES DIVISION

REVIEW OF COUNCIL APPROVAL PROCESS FOR PUBLIC ART

PROJECTS ON PRIVATE LAND
(File Ref. No. 11-7000-09-00) (REDMS No. 5722457 v. 5)

In response to questions from Committee, Eric Fiss, Public Art Planner,
advised that:

. public art submissions on private land currently go through a rigorous
review process under the leadership of a public art consultant;

- a selection panel made up of (i) representatives from the City and
community stakeholders, (ii) staff, to ensure compliance with Council
policies and goals, and (iii) the Richmond Public Art Advisory
Committee (RPAAC) reviews the proposed project;

. there is a policy that manages de-accessioning public artwork if
requested by the property owner, which may include selling or
returning it to the artist;

. various Area Public Art Plans recommend that developers contribute to
a pool of public art contributions to facilitate larger public art
installations;

. funds donated to the public art reserve fund are allocated for public art

capital projects;

. examples of public art throughout the city are listed on the City’s
website and new public art provided by developers on their private
property is listed in the annual report;
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" public art must meet fundamental community standards and a multi-
department staff review of public art on private land is carried out to
ensure compliance with Council guidelines; and

. in staff’s review of other municipalities, public art programs are
primarily managed by municipal staff, art agencies or autonomous art
commissions in order to maintain an arm’s-length approach.

Examples of public art on private property were distributed to Committee
(copy on file, City Clerk’s Office) and discussion ensued with regards to the
subjectivity of art and the potential to review the staff-led process for public
art on private property.

Chris Charlebois, former member of the Richmond Public Art Advisory
Committee, expressed concern for the speculation of art commissioned by
developers and expressed his support for local artists.

Linda Barnes, 4551 Garry Street and Paul Dufour, 3031 Williams Road,
representing the Richmond Arts Coalition, spoke in favour of the staff report
and was of the opinion that policies set by Council should set standards and
avoid subjective decision making.

In response to questions from Committee, Ms. Barnes commented that (i) any
policy that seeks to promote local artists would be worthwhile, (ii) art work is
subjective and should generate conversation, and (iii) a public art policy that
does not impose a final approval from Council is crucial in establishing a
strong art program.

As a result of the discussion, the following referral motion was introduced:

It was moved and seconded

That staff be directed to add policy in which Council has the discretion to
approve or refuse artwork on public or private property or recommend
allocating equivalent funds for other projects, and consider restrictions to
local artists.

The question on the referral motion was not called as discussion took place on
(i) whether the process should be amended to allow Council approval for art
on private land, (ii) requesting equal value of an art project for another project
or amenity from developers, and (iii) increasing support of local artists.

The question on the referral motion was then called and it was CARRIED
with Cllrs. Dang, Loo, and McPhail opposed.
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ENGINEERING AND PUBLIC WORKS DIVISION

BC ENERGY STEP CODE

(File Ref. No. 10-6125-07-02) (REDMS No. 5827315 v. 4)

It was moved and seconded

(1)  That Building Regulation Bylaw No. 7230, Amendment Bylaw No.
9769, which adds Part 10 Energy Step Code, be introduced and given
first reading;

(2) That Richmond Zoning Bylaw No. 8500, Amendment Bylaw No.
9845, which amends Sections 3.4, 4.2.1, 4.3.3 and 4.4.1, be
introduced and given first reading;

(3) That Richmond Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 9000,
Amendment Bylaw No. 9771, which amends Sections 12.4 and
14.2.10.A, be introduced and given first reading;

(4) That Richmond Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 7100,
Amendment Bylaw No. 9770, which amends Sections 2.2.3 and 2.5,
be introduced and given first reading;

(5) That Bylaw 9771 and Bylaw 9770, having been considered in
conjunction with:

(a) the City’s Financial Plan and Capital Program; and

(b) the Greater Vancouver Regional District Solid Waste and
Liquid Waste Management Plans;

are hereby found to be consistent with said programs and plans, in
accordance with 477(3)(a) of the Local Government Act;

(6) That Bylaw 9771 and Bylaw 9770, having been considered in
accordance with Official Community Plan Bylaw Preparation
Consultation Policy 5043, are hereby found not to require further
consultation;

(7)  That the creation of a two-year temporary full time Building Energy
Specialist, partially funded by a $100,000 contribution from BC
Hydro, with remaining salary and benefits of $130,000 fully
recovered through building permit fees, be endorsed and that the
Chief Administrative Officer and General Manager, Engineering and
Public Works be authorized to enter into a funding agreement with
BC Hydro to support the Building Energy Specialist position,

(8)  That the creation of new Plan Reviewer and Building Inspector 1
positions, with total salary and benefits of $200,000 fully recovered
through building permit fees, be endorsed;
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(99 That the Consolidated S Year Financial Plan (2018-2022) be
amended to include the temporary full-time Building FEnergy
Specialist, Plan Reviewer, and Building Inspector 1 positions funded
by an increase in grant revenue and building permit fees;

(10) That the Energy Step Code training programs identified in the staff
report titled "BC Energy Step Code" dated May 5, 2018, from the
Senior Manager, Sustainability and District Energy, and Acting
Director, Building Approvals, be approved with $110,000 from the
Carbon Tax Provision, as funded in the 2018 Operating Budget; and

(11) That for Part 3 and Townhouse developments, notwithstanding the
adoption of Building Regulation Bylaw No. 7230, Amendment Bylaw
No. 9769:

(@) If a Development Permit has been issued prior to September 1,
2018, the owner may, while their Development Permit remains
valid, apply for a Building Permit in compliance with the energy
efficiency requirements applicable prior to the adoption of
Bylaw 9769; and

(b) If an acceptable Development Permit application has been
submitted to the City prior to the adoption of Bylaw 9769, the
owner may, until December 31, 2019, apply for a Building
Permit in compliance with the energy efficiency requirements
applicable prior to the adoption of Bylaw 9769.

CARRIED
RICHMOND SPORTS COUNCIL FACILITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT
2018
(File Ref. No.)

Discussion ensued regarding the Sports Facilities Needs Assessment
submitted by the Richmond Sports Council (attached to and forming part of
these minutes as Schedule 1.)

As a result of the discussion, the following referral motion was introduced:

It was moved and seconded
That the 2018 Richmond Sports Council Facility Needs Assessment be
referred to staff for review and input.

The question on the referral motion was not called as staff was directed to
include a copy of the Richmond Major Facilities Projects (2016-2026) report
when reporting back.

The question on the referral motion was then called and it was CARRIED.
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ADJOURNMENT

It was moved and seconded
That the meeting adjourn (4:56 p.m.).

CARRIED

Certified a true and correct copy of the
Minutes of the meeting of the General
Purposes Committee of the Council of the
City of Richmond held on Monday, June

18, 2018.
Mayor Malcolm D. Brodie Amanda Welby
Chair Legislative Services Coordinator
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604-270-1400

Schedule 1 to the Minutes of the

General  Purposes
meeting of Richmond C

Committee
ity Council

held on Monday, June 18, 2018.

Richmond
Sports Council

www.richmondsportscouncil.com

June 12,2018

City Clerk

City of Richmond
6911 No. 3 Road
Richmond V6Y 2C1

Dear Sir:
Re: Richmond Sports Council Facility Needs Assessment 2018

Would you please arrange for the attached report to be added to the agenda for the next General
Purposes Committee Meeting.

As Chair, | would attend the meeting to answer any questions that Council members may have and also
to provide information as required.

Your truly,

/

Lamond,
hair

% L LA

l Jlamond1@telus.net

PO Box 162 - 185-9040 Blundell Road, Richmond BC V6Y 1K3

CNCL -42



(%(;gq Richmond
sy~ Sports Council

www.richmondsportscouncil.com

Richmond Sports Council is the collective voice of Richmond’s community sports

RICHMOND SPORTS COUNCIL

Sports Facilities Needs Assessment
June 2018

PO Box 162 - 185-9040 Blundell Road, Richmond BCV6Y 1K3
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B) Projects Already in Progress — not included in the priorities above:
a. Hugh Boyd — Multi-use facilities including change rooms
b. Lawn Bowling Club House

C) Future Possibilities:
a. Infuture, there is potential to include an Arena Facility as part of the Multi-sport Field

House complex.

In summary, Sports Council, on behalf of its Members, is recommending that the facility requirements
listed in Section A above be strongly considered for integration into current Parks and Recreation Capital
Budget priorities for the upcoming budget year.

Respectfully Submitted
Chairman, Richmond Sports Council

Attachments:

* Appendix A — Facilities Needs Assessment January 2018
* Appendix B — Sports Complex Preliminary Report October 9 1986

PO Box 162 - 185-9040 Blundell Road, Richmond BC V6Y 1K3
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Sports Facilities Needs Assessment
June 2018

APPENDIX “A”
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UPDATED FACILITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT — JANUARY 2018

2011- 2023
Sport Group Current Facilities 2011 | Future Facilities needed 2023
Richmond Cricket Covered area for scoring Bleachers for spectators
Club New deck on club house Bigger club house
Covered area for scoring
Richmond Curling | Upgrading of current facility
Wrestling room space of approximately 2,000 sqft.
Preferably in East Richmond
Dug Out Club Artificial turf baseball diamond (or infield only) that
would accommodate at least 80ft bases
Richmond Rugby Larger change room and -new permanent change room and shower facilities.
Club shower facilities The portable trailer unit we currently use is at the end

Lit rugby practice field

of its useful life. Its beyond making significant and
lasting repairs, it's also too small, and the economics of
another temporary unit don't make sense.

-a lit rugby practice field that can withstand winter
training so we can protect the one good field we
currently use.

Richmond Little
League Baseball

Indoor baseball facility
completed

Current facilities not in
line with facilities in
Lower Mainland

Youth Baseball Diamond in East Richmond.

More Weather dependable field in East Richmond
New showcase baseball facility

a) DIAMOND ACCESS - Allow access from mid Feb,
early March on at least one suitable practice diamond
to at the latest April 1st to Oct long weekend for
“Game Play”. (Includes for Fall Ball)

b) POWER - Made available to help perhaps suck up

| water with vacuums, pitching machines, wash

bleachers down, etc

c) WATER CONNECTION AT THE EXISTING
SPRINKLER BOX OR POSSIBLY NEAR BY

The dirt, leaves, spilled coffees, etc would be easier to
clean up amongst the bleachers, dugouts, etc if there
was a hose bib located closer than the community
garden.

d) LIGHT ACCESS - Having the ability to turn on the
lights (as needed) as we did at Latrace Field in the
past.

e) ADDITIONAL CONTAINER STORAGE and
TURNING EXISTING CONTAINER - To help with

Updated January 14, 2018
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the sorting of Field Equipment vs Baseball Equipment,
etc.

f) BASE PEGS - Assistance with putting base pegs in
at 70’ and 80’ to facilitate older age groups.

g) FENCE FOR 2018 SEASON - Depth TBD
depending on registration ages.. (Min 210°.. Max 250°)

h) MOUND FOR NUMEROUS DISTANCES - Used
a portable last year... While usable, not ideal for those
wanting to come out and practice on their own.. (As
many of the kids and families have being doing over
the summer).

Keeping a close eye on what solution UBC e¢omes up
with as they are now redeveloping their field to
accommodate Little League (46’ Mound / 60’ Bases)
to Varsity Baseball (60’6 / 90”).

i) SCRAPE INFIELD / ADD FEATHERED IN RED
CLAY IN “D” AREA - City contended they “couldn’t
get to” this past season due to weather concerns...
Field remained that way the entire year.

j) BLEACHERS REPAIRED - Someone had taken a
couple rungs away prior to last year.

k) SMALL GATES ON FIELD ACCESS OPENING -
Little League rules require a gate on the diamond
access doorway.

1) WASHROOM - PA BOOTH - Could be one and the
same... Right in behind home plate... .... Adult
softball currently pays for the one that is put there each
year, but most likely wouldn’t if we took over the
diamond for most part.

Richmond Tennis
Club

* Court damage from
construction repaired

* New perimeter fencing

* New wind screens

* Outdoor public
washroom upgraded

* 4 court bubble to replace
the current 3 court bubble

* New Clubhouse with meeting rooms (for events and
community group use),

functional kitchen, expanded shower facilities and
covered walkway to bubble.

(Current clubhouse was built in 2002 as a temporary
building)

* 4 court bubble (**if it has not been replaced)

* Improved seating around the courts and clubhouse

Updated January 14, 2018
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* Lease agreement with the
‘ city updated
* Designated parking
‘ (Grandfather current
parking permit for
| Richmond Tennis
Club members)

Richmond City
Baseball

» Current Facilities

| Needed (2011)

» Indoor baseball facility
(still a need)

» Latrace diamond — full
size outfield with a/t
surface (done)

NV /B 78, 7

Future Facilities Needed (by 2023)

More weather dependable fields (still an ongoing
need)

Improvements to existing fields (still an ongoing
need)

Latrace Field - Additional netting above existing
backstop (already in City plans)

Expansion of fence along 3rd base storage outdoor
area

2017 and beyond (no particular order):

A7

City Council approved RCBA Whiteside/South
Arm redevelopment

Blundell North field lights

Indoor/covered facility (part of what was from
2011 above)

Palmer/Garden City facility modernization

‘Richmond FC
(RYS)

Minoru Soccer Complex:

1. Covered benches for Minoru Oval

2. Complete siding for benches at Minoru 2 and 3

3. Urgent relocation for safety reasons of the power
box on the edge of Minoru Oval

4. Continue annual review of the lighting for the Oval
and Minoru 2 and 3 fields

5. Drinking water needs to be more available

Hugh Boyd Soccer Complex:

1. Build of the Hugh Boyd Community and Soccer
Club House

2. Replacement of the artificial turf at the Hugh Boyd
soccer fields

3. Refurbishment of the infrastructure at Hugh Boyd

4, Field lighting for the Hugh Boyd Oval field

5. Drinking water needs to be more available

King George Soccer Field:

1. Build covered benches at this facility
2. Continue annual review of the lighting for the
soccer field

Updated January 14, 2018
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3. Consider additional artificial turf field to
accommodate East Richmond (Hamilton) needs for
population growth

4. Drinking water needs to be more available

East Richmond:

1. Provide artificial turf soccer fields in East Richmond
Hamilton area to accommodate the increased
growth in Richmond’s population

Richmond Girls Softball

| Umpire room at London

Addition of softball diamond in the north west corner of
London Park.
Soccer field could be moved to the south, to edge the

| existing softball infield. This would allow for a 100 yard

soccer field and the new softball diamond. The addition of
one light post near the north west corner of the field
would complete the lighting requirements.

Softball fences could be installed and removed to
accommodate the various sports seasons.

Volleyball

Additional access to
elementary schools and
church facilities

Access to secondary schools
at weekends for practices

Richmond Lawn Bowling
C lub

Bigger clubhouse, currently
can only accommodate 75
people

Membership in 2010 was
300

Additional parking

Richmond
Lacrosse

Indoor space for box lacrosse

Covered box to be used year round for skill development —-
cover one of the outdoor boxes. Plenty of user groups can
use this, soccer,baseball, ball hockey and other.

indoor dryland training facility.

With better organization, it could be arranged for the ice to
come out of Silver at Minoru in January or better yet have
a dry floor all year long. Dry floor is cheaper to operate
could be rented out to all kinds of user groups such as
volleyball, ball hockey, birthday parties, etc. City is making
more money with the ice time but Lacrosse parents are
taxpayers as well.

Kajaks

Non interference at Clement
Track

Urgent:
* Resurface Minoru track

® Repainting of track

* Repair of curbing and surface of north and south
long jump pits

* New better quality sand for north and south long
jump pits

* Portable covers for north and south facing long

Updated January 14, 2018
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jump pits 7 p

Replacement of long jump and triple jump take off
board tray due to damage

Temporary fencing to prevent pebbles from
playground

Signage on jump pad fencing to describe rules of
use and exclusive use policies

Fencing along exterior of Clement Track and
Minoru field complex

Temporary fencing along the interior of the Oval to
separate field from track

Fencing along the exterior of the high jump pad to
stop interference from public

A fieldhouse replacement to include storage
Adequate lighting for Collier Throw Centre
throwing field

Resurfacing of both shot put rings

Resurfacing with thicker rubber surface around
and inside throwing cage

Clearing of ring drainage holes

Storage shed for throwing equipment on site at
throws centre

Warning signs around fencing of throw centre to
stop people climbing the fence during training
Accessibility of current storage including ramps
and easier to open doors

Better security of all outdoor storage including
improvements over existing padlock system
Clement Track redesign

Kyoskushin Karate

Community space to host
international events

chmond Field Hockey

Field dedicated to field
hockey with built in water
system and lined for across
field play

Richmond Gymnastics

New facility with large pit
area, larger area to expand
recreation programs,
showers, better reception
and viewing area, office,
party room and kitchen area

New or expanded facility double the size of current gym

Updated January 14, 2018
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RICHMOND SPORTS COUNCIL

Sports Facilities Needs Assessment
June 2018

Sports Complex Preliminary Report
October 1986

APPENDIX ‘B”
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October 9, 1986
The Mayor & Aldermen,
Richmond Municipal Council,
Richmond Muni;ipa] Offices.

Members of Council:

RE: SPORTS COMPLEX - PRELIMINARY REPORT

BACKGROUND :

In March of this year Municipal Council established a Task Force
to review the concept of a major sports complex for Richmond.
Members of this Task Force were:

Municipal Council Nick Loenen - Chairman
Hugh Mawby - Chairman
Greg Halsey-Brandt

Bob McMath
School Board Sylvia Gwozd
Sports Council Rick Henderson

Bill McNulty
Harvey Moore

Staff Mike Brow
Dave Semple

Council's direction to the Task Force was to make
recommendations to the Parks & Recreation Commission relative to the
following:

(a) which facilities/developments considered are most important
to a major sports complex and which facilities/developments
might be considered at other municipal sites;

(b) a priorizetion of facilities/developments which will answer
known deficiencies at this time and identify which
facilities/developments might be considered for incremental
development (note priorization flexibility comment in
analysis);

(c) identify and review with other departments the capability
and impact of servicing the site considering current
infrastructure development plans;

(d) review and refine earlier cost estimates (both capital and
operational) for each component to: i

i) seek out and identify funding sources, and
i1) investigate operational options

The Task Force has met six times through the spring and summer
and is prepared at this point to report its preliminary findings.
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CONCLUSIONS:

Task (a)

Task (b)

"which facilities/developments considered are most
important to a major sports complex and which
facilities/developments might be considered at other
municipal sites;" :

The Task Force reviewed the contents of the Sports
Council's original report outlining the requirements for
such a complex and concluded that the following
facilities were in the greatest need:

I

Outdoor Facilities

should include facilities adequate for tournaments
or competition, all others should be put in other
areas of the community.

Ice Arena

is required both in the community and centrally.
Sports Hall

should be a municipal-wide facility.

Stadium

should be a municipal-wide facility.

Curling Rink

should be a municipal-wide facility.

Indoor Pool

while there is a need for pools in the community
areas, this facility should be considered at a
municipal-wide site.

Other considerations

parking, specialized facilities, meeting space, etc.
also require investigation.

"a priorization of facilities/developments which will
answer known deficiencies at this time and identify which
facilities/developments might be considered for
incremental development (note priorization flexibility
comment in analysis);" :
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Task (c)

Task (d)

e

The Task Force priorized the six major components listed
above in Task (a) and while there was not a firm consensus
it was decided to proceed with the review based on the
following priority list:

1. Curling Rink

2. Sports Hall

3. Stadium

4, Fields

5. Arena

6. Pool !

"identify and review with other departinents the capability
and impact of servicing the site considering current

infrastructure development plans;

As conceptual plans for the Sports Complex were extremely
vague, it was difficult for the Task Force to effectively
evaluate servicing requirements. However, in discussion
with staff it would appear that most of the necessary
services to this site will be included with the Alderbridge
extension. This would need to be reviewed more closely
when more specific plans for the complex are detarmined.
There was considerable discussion also about the impact of
noise from aircraft on this type of complex. While there
was no firm conclusion reached on this issue, it was
generally felt that the noise factor should not detract
significantly from the activities proposed for this site.

"review and refine earlier cost estimates (both capital
and operational) for each component to:

éi) seek out and identify funding sources, and
i1) investigate operational options*

Before such a review could be done there was a need to
more clearly identify the types of facilities being
discussed, how they would be used, and who would operate
them. This review led to a first round of
conceptualizing how the complex would fit into a seventy
acre site and how all of the component parts could be

integrated so as to take advantage of common area
requirements (washrooms, changerooms, meeting space,
etc.). This conceptualization will be the subject of the
presentation made by the Task Force to the Parks &
Recreation Commission. 1In developing the concepts for
each of the component parts of the complex, the Task
Force felt that it was important the following factors be
considered in each:
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Expandability -

Flexibility - Training/Competition/Recreation Uses
Inter-Relationships - Common space for shared use
Operational Efficiencies

Integration of Club and Community Use

Accessible ;

Funding/Economic Opportunities

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Parks & Recreation Commission receive this interim
report from the Task Force and direct the Task Force to proceed with
Task (d) in further detail.

"review and refine eariier cost estimates (both capital and
operational) for each component to: ;

(i) seek out and identify funding sources, and
(ii) investigate operational options”

Respectfully submitted,

Alderman N. Loenen,
Task Force Chairman.

A presentation was made on behalf of the Sports Complex Task
Force at the Parks & Recreation Commission Meeting held on
Wednesday, October 8, 1986, at which time the above report was also

reviewed.

It was resolved to recommend that the Task Force be directed to
proceed with Task (d) as outlined in the report viz:

Task (d) "review and refine earlier cost estimates (both capital
and operational) for each component to:

%i) seek out and identify funding sources, and
ii) dinvestigate operational options”

Respectfully submitted,

Alderman H. Mawby, Chairman,
Parks & Recreation Commission.
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF RIZHMUND

REPORT TO COMMITTEE

DATE: March 9, 1988
T0: Parks & Recreation Commission
FROM: M. J. Brow
Director - Parks & Leisure Services
RE: SPORTS FACILITY TASK FORCE
EelEES

(024)

STAFF RECOMMENDAT ION

That Commission reinstate the Sports Facility Task Force to review tne
requirements for sports facilities in Richmond.

"5919P-62
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March 9, 1938 - 2 -

STAFF REPORT

ORIGIN

The Parks and Recreation Commission met with tne Sports Caouncil on February
10th, 1988 to discuss a number of issues wnich were of concern to both
parties. One of the outcomes of this meeting was a request to nave the
Sports Facility Task Force, originally set up by Council, reinstated and
work begin again on long range planning for sports facilities in Richmond.
The attached report, sent to Council in October 1986, outlines the work
completed by the original task force during 1986. After 1986, the Task
Force was absorbed with the efforts of the Commonwealth Games, which wds a
potential funding source for Ricnmond's sports facilities.

ANALYSIS

Richmond's need for more sports facilities has not diminished by the failure
to secure the Commonwealth Games Bid. The Curling Club 1is still being
displaced from its present site on Cambie Road. Facilities and fields are
still unable to meet the demand placed upon them by local amateur sporting
groups. The Municipality is still short of ice time and space to meet the
needs of hockey, figure skating and public skating groups.

The RCA Forum, a facility housing 21 groups representing over 2,000
participants, has been put on a month-to-month lease. The Municipality nhas
been informed that within two years the RCA Forum may not be available for
community use. A sub-committee of the Richmond Sports Council has been set
up with the RCA Forum user groups to look at alternatives to the Forum so a
plan is in place in the event nf the loss of the building.

The community of Richmond is growing. The demands on sporting facilities
are increasing at a rapid rate, With the defeat of the Sports Complex
porrowing referendum it is as necessary as ever that the development of
sports facilities be carried out in a planned, orderly manner witn major
input from the community.

CONCLUSION
That more than ever, the Sports Facility Task Force should be reinstated to

allow for community involvement in developing both short term and long term
needs of sports facility development in Richmond.

0. Semple, Manager
Area Operations & Sports Services

DS/jas
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Date:

Place;

Present:

Also Present;
Call to Order:

City of
Richmond

Planning Committee

Tuesday, June 19, 2018

Anderson Room
Richmond City Hall

Councillor Linda McPhail, Chair
Councillor Bill McNulty
Councillor Chak Au

Councillor Alexa Loo
Councillor Harold Steves

Councillor Carol Day

The Chair called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.

AGENDAADDITION

It was moved and seconded

That Replacement/Accommodation Policy for Commercial, Recreational,
Non-Profit, and Industrial Businesses for Properties Undergoing
Development be added to the agenda as Item No. 3A.

CARRIED

MINUTES

It was moved and seconded
That the minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held on June 5,
2018, be adopted as circulated.

CARRIED

NEXT COMMITTEE MEETING DATE

July 4, 2018, (tentative date) at 4:00 p.m. in the Anderson Room
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PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

APPLICATION BY YKLM ART SPACE CO. LTD. FOR A

TEMPORARY COMMERCIAL USE PERMIT AT 4211 NO. 3 ROAD
(File Ref, No. TU 18-803320) (REDMS No. 5854857)

It was moved and seconded

That the application by YKLM Art Space Co. Ltd. for a Temporary
Commercial Use Permit (TCUP) for property at 4211 No. 3 Road be
considered at the Public Hearing to be held July 16, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. in the
Council Chambers of Richmond City Hall; and that the following
recommendation be forwarded to that meeting for consideration:

“That a Temporary Commercial Use Permit be issued to YKLM Art
Space Co. Ltd. for property at 4211 No. 3 Road to allow ‘Auction,
Minor’ as a permitted use for a period of three years.”

CARRIED

APPLICATION BY 0989705 BC LTD. FOR REZONING AT 7960
ALDERBRIDGE WAY AND 5333 & 5411 NO. 3 ROAD FROM "AUTO-
ORIENTED COMMERCIAL (CA)" TO "CITY CENTRE HIGH
DENSITY MIXED USE (ZMU34) - LANSDOWNE VILLAGE"

(File Ref. No. 12-8060-20-009825; RZ 15-692485) (REDMS No. 5776888 v. 5)

With the aid of a PowerPoint presentation (copy on-file City Clerk’s Office)
Wayne Craig, Director, Development, and Janet Digby, Planner 3, reviewed
the application, highlighting the following:

. three levels of below grade parking, retail uses on the ground level, one
office tower and six residential towers are proposed,

. the proposed development is consistent with the City Centre Area Plan
(CCAP);

" the affordable housing contribution will include 38 low end market
rental units;

= 112 units will be allocated for market rental housing;

" a cash-in-lieu contribution of approximately $3.5 million will be

allocated to the Child Care Development Reserve Fund and the Child
Care Operating Reserve Fund;

" a cash-in-lieu contribution of approximately $7.5 million will be
allocated to the City Centre Facility Development Fund;
. road improvements will take place along No. 3 Road and Alderbridge
Way;
2.
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" a new north-south road will be constructed on the west side of the site,
and a new east-west road will be constructed on the south side of the
site;

. the applicant is proposing to utilize a low carbon energy plant to

connect to a future District Energy Utility.

Discussion ensued with regard to (i) options to incorporate rooftop solar
energy provisions, (ii) the proposed design of the proposed bicycle lanes
along the adjacent roads and the proposed bicycle parking on-site,
(iii) consultation with Richmond School District No. 38 on the proposed
development, and (iv) management of traffic during construction,

In reply to queries from Committee, staff noted that (i) potential play areas,
landscape design, and architectural design will be considered in the
Development Permit process, (ii) the proposed development will include
family friendly units, and (iii) the affordable housing units will be distributed
all throughout the proposed development.

It was moved and seconded

(1) That Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500, Amendment Bylaw 9825 to
create the “City Centre High Density Mixed Use (ZMU34) -
Lansdowne Village” zone, and to rezone 7960 Alderbridge Way and
5333 & 5411 No. 3 Road from “Auto-Oriented Commercial (CA)” to
“City Centre High Density Mixed Use (ZMU34) - Lansdowne
Village”, be introduced and given first reading; and

(2)  That staff be directed to prepare a service area bylaw to provide
district energy services to the development at 7960 Alderbridge Way
and 5333 & 5411 No. 3 Road.

CARRIED

APPLICATION BY ONNI 7811 ALDERBRIDGE HOLDING CORP
INC. FOR REZONING AT 7811 ALDERBRIDGE WAY FROM THE
“INDUSTRIAL RETAIL (IR1)” ZONE TO THE
“RESIDENTIAL/LIMITED COMMERCIAL (RCL2)” ZONE

(File Ref. No. 12-8060-20-009867; RZ 17-765420) (REDMS No. 5813659 v. 2)

With the aid of a PowerPoint presentation (copy on-file, City Clerk’s Office)
Mr. Craig and Sara Badyal, Planner 2, reviewed the application, noting the
following:

» the proposed development includes a five storey mixed use building on
the south portion of the site and a six storey residential building on the
north portion of the site;

. the proposed development will include approximately 280m* of
commercial space and approximately 30,000m? of residential space;
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. 22 low-end market rental units are proposed for the site;

" the proposed development complies with the CCAP;

. proposed road improvements will include the widening of River
Parkway and Alderbridge Way and the extension of Minoru Boulevard;

. a servicing agreement will allow for frontage improvements;

" the proposed development will be designed to connect to the existing
Richmond Olympic Oval District Energy Utility;

. the developer is proposing to install public art on-site; and

" a contribution is proposed towards the construction of a new water
main,

Discussion ensued with regard to (i) the restriction of commercial indoor
recreation uses on-site, (ii) options to incorporate a solar roof in the proposed
project, (iii) the site’s proximity to the airport flight path and compliance with
the City’s Aircraft Noise Sensitive Development Policy, and (iv) the proposed
extension of River Parkway.

It was moved and seconded

That Richmond Zoning Bylaw 8500, Amendment Bylaw 9867, for the
rezoning of 7811 Alderbridge Way from the “Industrial Retail (IR1)” zone
to the “Residential/Limited Commercial (RCL2)” zone, be introduced and
given first reading.

CARRIED

Discussion ensued regarding the restriction of commercial indoor recreation
uses for sites in proximity to the Richmond Olympic Oval.

As a result of the discussion, the following referral motion was introduced:

It was moved and seconded

That staff review the limitations on commercial recreation uses in the
Richmond Olympic Oval area and report back with background
information.

The question on the referral motion was not called as discussion ensued
regarding the justification of restricting commercial recreation uses in the
proposed development and recreational programming in the Richmond
Olympic Oval reaching capacity.

The question on the referral motion was then called and it was CARRIED.
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3A. REPLACEMENT/ACCOMMODATION POLICY FOR

COMMERCIAL, RECREATIONAL, NON-PROFIT, AND
INDUSTRIAL BUSINESSES FOR PROPERTIES UNDERGOING

DEVELOPMENT
(File Ref, No.)

Concern was raised regarding the potential loss of space for commercial,
recreational, non-profit and industrial businesses and organizations to new
developments.

As a result of the discussion, the following referral motion was introduced:

It was moved and seconded

That staff explore the introduction of a Replacement/Accommodation
Policy for commercial, recreational, non-profit, and industrial businesses
for properties undergoing development and report back.

The question on the motion was not called as discussion ensued with regard to
limiting potential development through the rezoning process.

The question on the referral motion was then called and it was CARRIED.

MANAGER’S REPORT

(i)  Rezoning Application Along 10000 Block of No. 1 Road

Mr. Craig noted that the applicant for the rezoning application along the
10000 block of No. 1 Road will be hosting a public information session on
June 20, 2018,

(ii)  Changes to Staff

Kim Somerville, Manager, Community Social Development, noted that
Coralys Cuthbert, Child Care Coordinator, will be retiring and that Joyce
Rautenberg, Affordable Housing Coordinator, will be leaving her position in
the City.

Committee commended Ms. Cuthbert and Ms. Rautenberg for their service to
the City.

ADJOURNMENT

It was moved and seconded
That the meeting adjourn (4:41 p.m.).

CARRIED
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Certified a true and correct copy of the
Minutes of the meeting of the Planning
Committee of the Council of the City of
Richmond held on Tuesday, June 19,

2018.
Councillor Linda McPhail Evangel Biason
Chair Legislative Services Coordinator
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Date:_,

Place:

Present:

Call to Order;

City of
Richmond

Public Works and Transportation Committee

Wednesday, June 20, 2018

Anderson Room
Richmond City Hall

Councillor Chak Au, Chair
Councillor Harold Steves
Councillor Derek Dang
Councillor Carol Day
Councillor Alexa Loo

The Chair called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.

MINUTES

It was moved and seconded
That the minutes of the meeting of the Public Works and Transportation
Committee held on May 24, 2018, be adopted as circulated.

CARRIED

NEXT COMMITTEE MEETING DATE

July 18, 2018, (tentative date) at 4:00 p.m. in the Anderson Room

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

EXPANSION OF RESERVED ON-STREET PARKING FOR CAR-
SHARE VEHICLES

(File Ref. No. 10-6455-00) (REDMS No. 5782549 v. 2)

Discussion ensued with regard to (i) potential interest from Richmond School
District No. 38 to include reserved car-share parking stalls on their lots,
(ii) expansion of the reserved car-share parking stalls in new developments in
the city centre area, and (iii) the growth and usage of car-share vehicles.
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It was moved and seconded

That the staff report titled “Expansion of Reserved On-Street Parking for
Car-Share Vehicles”, dated June 8, 2018 from the Director, Transportation,
to support enhanced car-share services in Richmond, be received for
information.

CARRIED

ENGINEERING AND PUBLIC WORKS DIVISION

2018 CORPORATE ENERGY MANAGEMENT PROGRAM UPDATE
(File Ref. No. 10-6125-05-01) (REDMS No. 5846481 v. 10)

Levi Higgs, Corporate Energy Manager, and Jim Nelson, BC Hydro,
reviewed the Corporate Energy Management Program, highlighting that the
City saves approximately $1 million annually on electricity costs and that
energy saving features such as LED lighting, improved glazing, and heat
recovery have been incorporated in new City facilities.

It was suggested that staff present the 2018 Corporate Energy Management
Program at an upcoming Council meeting, and that the report be distributed to
Metro Vancouver.

It was moved and seconded

That the staff report titled “2018 Corporate Energy Management Program
Update” from the Senior Manager of Sustainability and District Energy,
dated May 25, 2018, be received for information.

CARRIED

PUBLIC ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING INFRASTRUCTURE
EXPANSION

(File Ref. No. 10-6125-07-02) (REDMS No. 5843707 v. 14)

In reply to queries from Committee, staff noted that (i) different charging
station types vary in cost, (ii) a total of six new charging stations are proposed
for City Hall and the Richmond Olympic Oval, (iii) the implementation of
parking fees for charging stations are proposed, (iv) staff can explore
opportunities to receive Greenhouse Gas (GHG) credits, (v) staff can examine
options to make the proposed parking spaces accessible-friendly, and (vi) staff
will prepare a communication strategy should the proposed bylaw proceed.
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It was moved and seconded

That, as described in the staff report ftitled, "Public FElectric Vehicle
Charging Infrastructure Expansion' dated May 18th 2018 from the Senior
Manager, Sustainability & District Energy:

(1) publicly accessible electric vehicle charging infrastructure be
installed at City Hall and Richmond Olympic Oval, with funding
from the 2017 Capital Budget,

(2) pending the successful award of the City’s application to Natural
Resources Canada’s Electric Vehicle and Alternative Fuel
Infrastructure Deployment Initiative grant, staff be directed to report
back with any additional capital budget approval for further
expansion of charging infrastructure; and

(3)  a cost recovery approach to impose user fees and time limits for
publicly accessible electric vehicle charging stations be endorsed as
outlined in the report, and that staff be directed to bring forward
amendments to the Consolidated Fees Bylaw No. 8636, the Traffic
Bylaw No. 5870, Parking (Off-Street) Regulation Bylaw No. 7403,
and the Notice of Bylaw Violation Dispute Adjudication Bylaw
No. 8122 to implement this cost recovery approach.

CARRIED

WOODWARDS SLOUGH HABITAT COMPENSATION
(File Ref. No. 10-6050-01) (REDMS No. 5852990 v. 12)

Discussion ensued with regard to (i) Department of Fisheries and Oceans
(DFO) requirements to provide habitat compensation for the infilling of
drainage canals as part of the Westminster Highway and Nelson Road
widening projects, (ii) the proposed design and location of the habitat
compensation in the Woodwards Slough, (iii) the estimated costs of the
proposed habitat compensation, (iv) the minimal impact of filling inland
drainage canals on fish habitat, (v) the Provincial regulations related to
Riparian Management Area compensation and the impact of the regulations to
farming, and (vi) advocating senior levels of government to review
regulations related to habitat compensation.

In reply to queries from Committee, staff noted that costs related to the
proposed habitat compensation have been factored in the Westminster
Highway and Nelson Road project and that the City can continue engaging
with the Province to review current regulations. It was added that the
proposed habitat compensation will provide positive environmental
enhancements in the Woodwards Slough area.

CNCL - 66



Public Works & Transportation Committee
Wednesday, June 20, 2018

5878561

It was moved and seconded

That the staff report titled “Woodwards Slough Habitat Compensation,”
dated May 25, 2018, from the Acting Director, Engineering, be received for
information.

CARRIED

Discussion ensued with regard to the Terra Nova project and requesting a
Provincial review of the regulations related to habitat compensation.

As a result of the discussion, the following referral motion was introduced:

It was moved and seconded

That staff use the Terra Nova model to explore opportunities to receive
credits towards releasing .of habitat compensation requirements on future
projects, and report back.

CARRIED

SOUTH ARM DIKE UPGRADE BETWEEN GILBERT ROAD AND
NO. 3 ROAD

(File Ref. No. 10-6340-20-P.17302) (REDMS No. 5796103 v. 5)

Discussion ensued with regard to (i) options to widen the dike for a bicycle
path, (ii) the proposed design of the dike, and (iii) the materials and types of
soil used to upgrade the dike.

It was moved and seconded

That the staff report titled “South Arm Dike Upgrade Between Gilbert Road
and No. 3 Road,” dated April 27, 2018, from the Acting Director,
Engineering, be received for information.

CARRIED

BOUNDARY ROAD DRAINAGE MEMORANDUM OF

UNDERSTANDING
(File Ref. No. 10-6000-01) (REDMS No. 5804141 v. 6)

It was moved and seconded

(1)  That the Chief Administrative Officer and the General Manager,
Engineering be authorized to execute, on behalf of the City, a
Memorandum of Understanding between the City and the City of
New Westminster containing the material terms and conditions set
out in the staff report titled, “Boundary Road Drainage
Memorandum of Understanding” dated May 25, 2018 from the
Acting Director, Engineering;
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(2)  That the 5 Year Financial Plan (2018-2022) be amended to fund the
City’s share of fronting costs for the Boundary Road Pump Station
upgrade of $960,000 from the Drainage Improvement Reserve and
the estimated annual operating cost of $4,475 be incorporated into
the 2019 Budget; and

(3)  That staff bring forward updates to the Works and Services Cost
Recovery Bylaw No. 8752 to include recovery of the fronting costs for
the Boundary Road Pump Station upgrade from benefiting
developments in the Thompson Boundary Area.

CARRIED

MANAGER’S REPORT

(i)  Maintenance of Dike

Tom Stewart, Acting General Manager, Public Works, presented a
photograph of a section of dike in East Richmond (attached to and forming
part of these minutes as Schedule 1), noting that City crews have conducted
maintenance work on the dike to prepare for freshet.

(ii)  Brighouse Fire Hall No. 1

Robert Gonzalez, Deputy CAO and Interim General Manager, Richmond
Olympic Oval Corporation, noted that the opening ceremony of Fire Hall
No. 1 has been postponed and will be rescheduled when Richmond Fire-
Rescue staff occupies the building.

(iii)  Solar Rooftops

Discussion ensued with regard to solar roof requirements in the city centre
area and as a result, the following referral motion was introduced:

It was moved and seconded
That staff:

(1)  provide an update on the District Energy Program;

(2)  explore initiatives for a Solar District Energy in the city centre area;
and

(3)  explore initiatives for rainwater harvesting;

and report back.
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ADJOURNMENT

It was moved and seconded
That the meeting adjourn (5:02 p.m.).

CARRIED

Certified a true and correct copy of the
Minutes of the meeting of the Public
Works and Transportation Committee of
the Council of the City of Richmond held
on Wednesday, June 20, 2018.

Councillor Chak Au Evangel Biason
Chair Legislative Services Coordinator
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| Minutes

Council/School Board Liaison Committee

Date: Wednesday, April 25, 2018
Place: Anderson Room

Richmond City Hall
Present: Councillor Alexa Loo, Chair

Councillor Linda McPhail

Trustee Ken Hamaguchi

Trustee Donna Sargent

Trustee Debbie Tablotney (entered at 9:07 a.m.)
Trustee Alice Wong

Call to Order: The Chair called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.

AGENDA

It was moved and seconded
That the Council/School Board Liaison Committee agenda for the meeting
of April 25, 2018, be adopted as circulated.

CARRIED

MINUTES

It was moved and seconded
That the minutes of the meeting of the Council/School Board Liaison
Committee held on March 7, 2018, be adopted as circulated.

CARRIED

STANDING ITEMS

1. TRAFFIC SAFETY ADVISORY COMMITTEE
(File Ref, No.)

The minutes of the meeting of the Traffic Safety Advisory Committee held on
April 5, 2018 was distributed (attached to and forming part of these minutes
as Schedule 1).
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Fred Lin, Senior Transportation Engineer, COR, referenced the April 5, 2018
Traffic Safety Advisory Committee minutes and noted the following:

" under the 2018 Special Pedestrian Crosswalk Program, several special
crosswalk locations are scheduled to be completed this year including
crosswalks near Thompson and Jesse Wowk Elementary schools;

x a pedestrian crosswalk and vehicle speed study has been conducted
along Finlayson Drive near Tait Elementary school and a new
crosswalk will be installed in that location due to pedestrian volume;

" a plan will need to be drafted to address illegal parking at General
Currie Elementary school; and

" suggested improvements to the James McKinney Elementary School
parking include (i) the removal of no-parking zones, (ii) revision of the
parking time restrictions, and (iii) extension of the loading zone.

Trustee Tablotney entered the meeting (9:07 a.m.).

Discussion ensued with regard to raising traffic safety awareness for parents
and students.

In reply to queries from Committee, Mr. Lin noted that (i) development of
crosswalks are based on a traffic study of the area and are typically complaint
based, (ii) traffic safety issues near schools are communicated to the City
through the Traffic Safety Advisory Committee, and (iii) the City receive
collision statistics from ICBC and staff can provide information related to the
number of collision injuries in a specific area.

BUSINESS ARISING & NEW BUSINESS

TRAFFIC SAFETY ADVISORY COMMITTEE- PROPOSED 2018
INITIATIVES
(File Ref. No. 01-0100-30-TSAD1-01) (REDMS No. 5702321)

Mr. Lin reviewed the 2017 highlights and proposed 2018 initiatives, noting
that (i) pedestrian school zone markers were installed near Hamilton
Elementary School and Cambie Secondary School, (ii) customized School
Travel Plans were developed for Garden City, AB Dixon and Walter Lee
Elementary Schools, (iii) the review of traffic safety school zones will be
on-going in 2018, and (iv) the City will be working with the Richmond
RCMP on traffic enforcement in school zones,

Discussion ensued with regard to engaging parents on parking and traffic
safety in schools.
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TRANSLINK SOUTHWEST AREA TRANSPORT PLAN - FINAL
PLAN
(File Ref. No. 01-0154-04; 12-8060-20-009816) (REDMS No. 5684886 v. 2; 5688976)

Mr. Lin reviewed the TransLink Southwest Area Transportation Plan, noting
that (1) the plan focuses on multi-modal forms of transportation, (ii) the City
adopted the plan on March 2018, (iii) implementation of the plan would be
done through future transit demand and funding, and (iv) feedback from the
District was sent to TransLink through their consultation process.

Discussion ensued with regard to safe walking areas around transit stops.

PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT PROGRAM
(File Ref. No.)

Roy Uyeno, Secretary-Treasurer, SD 38, spoke on the Playground Equipment
Program, noting that (i) the Ministry of Education’s annual Playground
Equipment Program commenced this year and will provide $5 million
towards playground equipment for schools province-wide, (ii) Provincial
funding would focus on schools without a playground or playgrounds with
safety concerns, (iii) the District has submitted their top three priority
playground requests — Blundell Elementary School, RM Grauer Elementary
School, and James Gilmore Elementary School, (iv) the District will
undertake a full review of the playground sites and will be consulting with
Parent Advisory Committees, and (v) the District will be working with the
City on shared sites.

In reply to queries from Committee, City staff noted that the City has
allocated funding for playground equipment on City sites, and will be
partnering with the District on potential shared opportunities. Also, it was
noted that the City works closely with the Richmond Centre for Disability on
playground accessibility.

PROPOSED OFFICIAL COMMUNITY PLAN (CITY CENTRE AREA
PLAN) AMENDMENT AT 6551 NO. 3 ROAD (RICHMOND CENTRE
SOUTH REDEVELOPMENT PLAN)- REQUEST TO ENDORSE AN
APPLICANT-LED PUBLIC CONSULTATION PROCESS

(File Ref. No. 08-4105-20; CP 16-752923) (REDMS No. 5779435 v. 4)

With the aid of a PowerPoint presentation (copy on-file, City Clerk’s Office)
Wayne Craig, Director, Development, COR, spoke on the proposal, noting the
following:

. the proposed development will not include a rezoning application since
the subject site was previously zoned for high density use;

" the first phase is anticipated in 2019 and will include demolition of the
existing parkade and some retail spaces;

. the proposed development will include frontage improvements to
Minoru Boulevard and No. 3 Road, improvements to cycling lanes, and
improved vehicle access through the connection of local streets;
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. underground parking is proposed for the site;
" a central public plaza is proposed;
" the developer is proposing to allocate 5% of the residential units toward

affordable housing, including a mix of family-friendly units;

. the proposed development will be built to connect a future District
Energy Utility; and

. public consultation will include mail notification, newspaper
advertisements, a public display inside the current mall, open houses
and surveys through Let’s Talk Richmond.

Discussion ensued with regard to (i) potential for an increase in students in the
area, (ii) potential locations for a school in the city centre area, (iii) and
potential developer funding contributions to develop a new school.

FINAL AFFORDABLE HOUSING STRATEGY 2017-2027
(File Ref, No. 08-4057-05) (REDMS No. 5748976 v. 14; 5730836)

Joyce Rautenberg, Affordable Housing Coordinator, COR, provided an
overview of the Final Affordable Housing Strategy, highlighting that (i) the
Strategy reviewed key housing gaps for groups such as families, low to
middle income residents, special needs individuals, seniors and vulnerable
groups, (ii) the Strategy reviewed various housing types such as adaptable
housing, non-market housing, low income rental and emergency shelter space
for women and children, (iii) the Strategy reviewed policies related to cash
contribution rates for developers and development threshold limits for
affordable housing unit contributions, (iv) the Strategy explored partnership
opportunities with non-profit community organizations and senior levels of
government, and (v) Council adopted the Strategy in March 2018.

Discussion ensued with regard to (i) locating schools in proximity to
community services and housing, (ii) utilizing housing models similar to the
Kiwanis and Storeys housing projects, and (iii) partnering with senior levels
of government to encourage the development of low income rental housing.

DRAFT 2018-2021 VOLUNTEER MANAGEMENT STRATEGY
(File Ref. No. 05-1875-01) (REDMS No. 5753189 v.13 5759659; 5773920)

With the aid of a PowerPoint presentation (copy on-file, City Clerk’s Office),
Wing Ho, Volunteer Development Coordinator, COR, and Gregg Wheeler,
Manager, Sport and Community Events, COR, reviewed the Strategy, and
spoke on (i) the Strategy’s background, (ii) the consultation process to update
the Strategy, (iii) improvements to the software to streamline searches for
volunteer opportunities in the City, and (iv) working with District staff to
streamline the evaluation of student volunteer experiences.

Discussion ensued with regard to (i) improving the training of volunteers,
(ii) streamlining management of volunteers, and (iii) working with the District
to encourage the participation of students in volunteer opportunities.
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10.

MUSEUM AND HERITAGE SERVICES UPDATE 2017
(File Ref. No. 11-7000-01) (REDMS No. 5767447)

Marie Fenwick, Manager, Museum and Heritage Services, COR, presented a
video on Museum and Heritage Services 2017 activities (copy on-file City
Clerk’s Office), noting that (i) City staff will be working with District staff to
streamline the field trip booking process for teachers, (ii) the restoration of the
Steveston Interurban Tram is nearing completion and the City will be offering
student programs on a regular basis, and (iii) the City will be creating a series
of short films on the history of Richmond that will be posted on the City’s
website,

Discussion ensued with regard to potential student involvement in the
proposed short film project.

PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO PUBLIC HEALTH PROTECTION
BYLAW NO. 6989 REGARDING SMOKING AND VAPOUR
PRODUCT USE

(File Ref, No. 12-8060-20-009830) (REDMS No. 5548809 v. 26; 5791097; 5747218; 5541598; 562470;
5747693)

Beayue Louie, Park Planner, COR, reviewed the proposed amendment, noting
that City staff anticipate that there will be minimal impact to school grounds
since existing restrictions related to smoking and vapour product use on
school grounds are in place. She added that information brochures will be
available for distribution and will be translated to Chinese.

Discussion ensued with regard to (i) raising public awareness of the new
regulations, (ii) reporting violators, (iii) installing no-smoking signs and
(iv) the resources required for enforcement.

CHILD CARE COORDINATOR
(File Ref. No.)

Serena Lusk, General Manager, Community Services, COR, noted that
Coralys Cuthbert, Child Care Coordinator, COR, will be retiring from her
position and thanked her for her service to the City.

NEXT COMMITTEE MEETING DATE

June 27, 2018 (tentative date) at 9:00 a.m. in the Anderson Room.

ADJOURNMENT

It was moved and seconded
That the meeting adjourn (10:46 p.m.).

CARRIED
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Certified a true and correct copy of the
Minutes of the meeting of the City of
Richmond Council/School Board Liaison
Committee held on April 25, 2018.

Councillor Alexa Loo Evangel Biason
Chair Legislative Services Coordinator
City Clerk’s Office
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Schedule 1 to the Minutes of the
Council/School Board Liaison
Committee meeting held on
Wednesday, April 25, 2018,

CITY OF RICHMOND

TRAFFIC SAFETY ADVISORY COMMITTEE
MINUTES

HELD Thursday, April 5, 2018 - 9:30 a.m.
Meeting Room M.1.0003

RICHMOND CITY HALL

In Attendance:

Sgt. Nigel Pronger, Richmond RCMP - Traffic Susan Lloyd, City of Richmond, Community Bylaws
Michael Palmer, Richmond School District Bill Dhaliwal, City of Richmond, Transportation
Borg Chan, Richmond District Parents Association Roy Chen, City of Richmond, Transportation

Lingly Wilson, Richmond District Parents Association

David Hill, ICBC '

Joanne Bergman, ICBC

1. Next Meeting

Next meeting — Thursday, June 7, 2018, 9:30 a.m,, Meeting Room M.1.003, Richmond City Hall.
Please submit agenda items to Liynda Epps, Transportation Department, at least one week before the
meeting date: email - lepps@richmond.ca).

2. Adoption of Agenda
The agenda of the meeting dated April 5, 2018 was adopted with the following additions:

o  General Currie Elementary School - Bylaw Issue (Lingly Wilson)
e James McKinney Elementary School — Vehicle Parking (Lingly Wilson)

3. Adoption of Minutes
The minutes of the meeting dated February 1, 2018 were adopted.

4. Muli-Use Pathway Projects — Westminster Highway and No. 2 Road

B. Dhaliwal informed the Committee that two new three meter (3.0m) wide multi-use pathway (MUP)
projects are currently under construction at the following locations:

e No.2 Road (east side) between Steveston Highway and London Road; and
o Westminster Highway (south side) between No. 8 Road and Nelson Road.

Other major components of these projects include a new traffic signal at No. 2 Road and Moncton Street,
replacing the signed and marked crosswalk connecting south Dyke Trail near the southern end of
No. 2 Road to a special crosswalk; and upgrade of the affected public transit bus stops with installation of
landing pads at both locations.
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5. 2018 Special Pedestrian Crosswalk Program

B. Dhaliwal informed the Committee of the locations for the 2018 Special Pedeétrian Crosswalk Program.
There are five proposed special crosswalk locations that are scheduled to be completed later in 2018:

Elmbridge Way at Cedarbridge Way;

8200 Block of Ackroyd Road;

No. 1 Road at Tucker Road;

Railway Avenue at Woodwards Road; and
Williams Road at Deagle Road.

® o o ® o

6. Tait Elementary School — Traffic Safety

B. Dhaliwal informed the Committee that a pedestrian crosswalk and vehicle speed study has recently
been conducted at the 10100 block of Finlayson Drive adjacent to Tait Elementary School, The
crosswalk study determined that a signed and marked pedestrian crosswalk was not wartanted at the
subject location; however a new pedestrian crosswalk will nonetheless be installed due to the pedestrian
desire line and the significant number of students crossing Finlayson Drive. The speed study determined
that there were no significant vehicle speeding issues at the subject location. The principal of Tait
Elementary School has been informed of the results of both of the studies.

7. River Road - Traffic Safety Measures and Enforcement
B. Dhaliwal informed the Committee of road safety traffic measures proposed for River Road, including:

° revise the existing “Single File” signage;

* revise the existing “Caution” signage;

e convert the existing solid double yellow centreline to dashed single yellow centreline at six
locations on River Road; :

e remove the existing raised pavement markers (RPMs) and install shoulder-mounted reflective
delineator posts along curves at each end of River Road;

 install two movable vehicle speed reader boards; and

* re-locate the existing “Bike Route” sign on westbound Westminster Highway.

Sgt. Nigel Pronger stated that traffic enforcement alone will not solve vehicle speeding issues on
River Road. Other traffic safety solutions would be alternative traffic engineering measures other than
vehicle speed cushions. The Richmond RCMP will continue to conduct traffic enforcement along River
Road; however, no enforcement can be done for cyclists and education needs to be communicated to
cycling groups that may use River Road. B. Dhaliwal indicated that there is a long-term plan (Dyke
Upgrading ~ Engineering Planning) to improve River Road that will include traffic safety improvements
such as adding separated bike and traffic lanes.

Other Business
8. General Currie Elementary School - Bylaw Issue

Lingly Wilson informed the Committee about illegal vehicle parking at General Currie Elementary
School. Double/triple vehicle parking was observed on school property. Sgt. Nigel Pronger indicated
that the school’s principal will need to create a plan to address the issue.

9. James McKinney Elementary School Parking

Lingly Wilson informed the Committee about concerns raised from parents of children attending James
MeKinney Elementary School regarding the restricted on-street vehicle parking zone on Wallace Road
between No. 2 Road and Lassam Road. Some suggestions for parking improvements are to remove the
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no-parking zone, revise the “No Parking 8:30am — 4:00pm” time restriction, or extend the loading zone.
City staff will review the suggestions and determine if any further vehicle parking changes can be
implemented.

fr CA!\&M %f /fb)\ /‘74?’/2,\

Sgt. Nigel Pronger, Acting Chairperson = Rof(fhen, Recorder

% Any corrections to the above minutes should be forwarded to the recorder within one week of receipt of
these minutes, or otherwise they are deemed to be accurate and “Certified a true and correct copy of the
minutes of the meeting of the Traffic Safety Advisory Committee of the Council of the City of Richmond held

on April 5, 2018.”
Traffic Safety Advisory Committee - Distribution List
Sgt. Nigel Pronger, Richmond RCMP — Traffic (Chairperson) Gordon Chan, City of Richmond — Transportation
Michael Palmer, Richmond School District Cameron Robertson, City of Richmond — Transportation
‘Wanda Plante, Richmond School Board Ian Oliver, City of Richmond — Transportation
Borg Chan, Richmond District Parent Association Roy Chen, City of Richmond - Transportation
. | Lingly Wilson, Richmond District Parent Association Joan Caravan, City of Richmond ~ Transportation
David Hill, ICBC Bill Johal, City of Richmond — Transportation
Joanne Bergman, ICBC Donna Chan, City of Richmond — Transportation
Brian MacLeod, Richmond Fire-Rescue Susan Lloyd, City of Richmond — Community Bylaws
Sandra Jansen, Richmond Fire-Rescue Edwin Tahir, City of Richmond — Community Bylaws
Victor Wei, City of Richmond — Transportation Councillor Harold Steves
Bill Dhaliwal, City of Richmond - Transportation Councillor Ken Johnston
Traffic Safety Advisory Commitiee — Member Agencies
City of Richmond — Fire/Rescue Richmond District Parent Association
City of Richmond ~ Community Bylaws (Parking) Richmond RCMP Detachment — Traffic Section
City of Richmond — Transportation Richmond School District
ICBC
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ity of

ichmond Report to Committee
To: Finance Committee Date: May 3, 2018
From: Andrew Nazareth File:

General Manager, Finance and Corporate

Services
Re: 2017 Annual Report and 2017 Annual Report — Highlights

Staff Recommendation

That the reports titled, “2017 Annual Report” and the “2017 Annual Report — Highlights” be
approved.

N

Andrew Nazareth
General Manager, Finance and Corporate Services
(4095)

Att. 2

REPORT CONCURRENCE

CONCURRENCE OF GENERAL MANAGER

A._.,___o-n—-

REVIEWED BY SMT INITIALS:

1
¥ill.
APF ovEDm«/\,‘
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Staff Report
Origin
Pursuant to Section 98 of the Community Charter, before June 30"’, in each year, a Council must:
a) Prepare an annual report
b) Make the report available for public inspection
c) Have the report available for public inspection at a Council or other public meeting
Analysis

The City of Richmond’s annual report formally presents the audited financial statements and
other relevant financial, economic and demographic indicators to the public. The report also
highlights many of the City’s significant achievements from 2017, in support of Council’s Term
Goals and objectives.

Two versions of the Annual Report are produced each year in order to reach the different
audiences interested in this information. The comprehensive 2017 Annual Report meets all
legislative requirements for financial reporting as required under the Community Charter for
British Columbia’s local governments. This version will be publicly available through the City’s
website at www.richmond.ca and printed only on a demand basis. The comprehensive version
includes the City’s audited consolidated financial statements; the City’s corporate objectives and
success indicators, as identified through Council’s Term Goals; and a listing of permissive
exemptions. In addition to the statutorily required information, the comprehensive version
provides information on the City’s milestones from 2017, including awards and achievements
and a variety of key corporate financial and community demographic statistical data for the year.

For a broader audience, the City also produces a condensed financial reporting document known
as the 2017 Annual Report — Highlights. This shorter version which is designed to be accessible
and easily understandable to the general public provides information about the City of
Richmond, its services, highlights from 2017 and the City’s financial condition. This condensed
version will also be available through the City’s website and limited copies will be mailed out
and available to the general public at Richmond City Hall. New this year, the layout has been
enhanced to allow for an expanded section detailing the City’s milestones during 2017, including
a focus on Richmond Canada 150. The community profile section in the Highlights report has
also been revised to provide an expanded numerical snapshot of the City.

Both copies will be submitted to the Government Finance Officers Association for consideration
in their annual award program.

Financial Impact

None.
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Conclusion

The City of Richmond 2017 Annual Report and the 2017 Annual Report — Highlights satisfy the
Community Charter requirements for financial reporting and are important instruments in
ensuring public transparency and accountability for the management of City finances. The
reports also provide useful information on the City’s achievements during the 2017 fiscal year.

Jerry Chong Ted Townsend

Director, Finance Director, Corporate Communications and
Marketing

(4064) (4399)

Att. 1: 2017 Annual Report
2: 2017 Annual Report — Highlights
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City of
Richmond 2017 Annual Report

British Columbia, Canada For the year ended December 31, 2017

Our vision is to be the most appealing, livable
and well-managed community in Canada
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Message from the Mayor

2017 was a milestone year for Richmond and for Canada. Richmond
fully embraced the 150th anniversary of Canadian Confederation with
a memorable year of programs and events to showcase our national
heritage, while also creating new legacies for our community.

Our Richmond Canada 150 program was one of the largest year-long
community celebrations in the country. The City hosted many of its own
marquee Canada 150 events, including a very popular Pioneer Luncheon
for longtime residents, and provided funding through grants for dozens
of other events organized by our community partners. Some of these
events, such as the Richmond Cherry Blossom Festival, are now planned
to become ongoing annual events. Council also funded a number of
legacy public art projects to commemorate Canada 150, including the
Fraser Giant, a life-sized replica of the giant sturgeon that live in the
waters of the Fraser River surrounding Richmond. We were pleased that the Richmond Canada 150
program was named as a finalist for two awards in the 2017 Canadian Event Industry Awards.

Council also took many steps in 2017 to improve our service delivery to residents. This included the
opening of the Storeys affordable housing complex, providing 129 homes and program and office
space for a number of community social service agencies. This unique partnership, which involved
three levels of government and five non-profit agencies, has now become a national model for
addressing housing affordability challenges.

We also opened the new Cambie No. 3 Fire Hall, the first facility in urban BC to house both a fire
hall and an ambulance station. In 2018, we will open the Brighouse No.1 Fire Hall, completing an
ambitious 15-year program which has included building five new fire halls along with creating a
new home for our Richmond RCMP detachment.

As a further commitment to community safety, Council approved funding to hire another 16
additional police officers and three new municipal police employees in 2018. Altogether, 39
additional police officers and six municipal police support employees have been added during the
current Council term.

Our award-winning district energy program continues to be a huge success and is now on its way
to becoming North America’s largest district energy utility. Our commitment to district energy and
other energy reduction initiatives has allowed us to achieve an overall six per cent reduction in
community greenhouse gas emissions despite a seven per cent growth in population over the past
decade.

We are proud of our accomplishments and thankful for the support of our staff, volunteers,
community partners and businesses as we grow and preserve our high quality of life. To learn more,
| invite you to contact the Mayor’s Office at any time.

L

Malcolm Brodié
Mayor, City of Richmond

.

CNCL -85
City of Richmond 2017 Annual Report



Richmond City Council

Front row, left to right:
Councillor Carol Day, Councillor Bill McNulty, Mayor Malcolm Brodie, Councillor Linda McPhail,
Councillor Harold Steves

Back row, left to right:

Constable Adam Carmichael, Richmond RCMP, Councillor Chak Au, Councillor Derek Dang,
Councillor Ken Johnston, Councillor Alexa Loo, Captain Jack Beetstra, Richmond Fire-Rescue

Connect with Richmond City Council

To contact Council: mayorandcouncillors@richmond.ca or call 604-276-4000.

For Council Meetings Agendas and Minutes visit: www.richmond.ca/cityhall/council/agendas.
To watch Council meetings on live streaming or view videos of past meetings visit:
www.richmond.ca/cityhall/council/watch-video.
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City of Richmond organizational chart

as of December 31, 2017
Chief Administrative Office
George Duncan, CAO

Deputy Chief Administrative Office
Robert Gonzalez, Deputy CAO

Community Services Engineering and Public Works  Finance and Corporate Services
Joe Erceg (Acting), GM Robert Gonzalez, GM Andrew Nazareth, GM

Community Safety Planning and Development
Cecilia Achiam, GM Joe Erceg, GM

Civic officials

Chief Administrative Officer.......ccccciiiiiiii
Deputy Chief Administrative Officer............c.cccooociiiiiii
General Manager, Community ServiCes ...........cooovvivireeiiiieeaee.
General Manager, Engineering and Public Works .........................
General Manager, Finance and Corporate Services......................
General Manager, Planning and Development..........ccccccooeeiinne.

General Manager, Interagency Programs and

Steveston Waterfront Initiatives.............ccccooiiiiiic
General Manager, Community Safety........cc.ccooeiiiiiiiiece
Director, City Clerk's Office.......coovvviiiiiiiie e
CItY SONCITON ot
Chief, Richmond Fire-ReSCUE ... ....ccoviiieeeee e

Affiliated agencies

Officer in Charge, Royal Canadian Mounted Police ......................
Chief Operating Officer, Richmond Olympic Oval .........................
Chief Librarian, Richmond Public Library.............cccooooiiiiiiiin,
Chief Executive Officer, Lulu Island Energy Company Ltd. .............

Banker Auditors
Scotiabank KPMG

George Duncan

Robert Gonzalez

Cathy Volkering Carlile to October 26, 2017
Robert Gonzalez

Andrew Nazareth

Joe Erceg

Dave Semple

Cecilia Achiam from May 1, 2017
David Weber

Barbara Sage

John McGowan to September 30, 2017

....................... Robert Gonzalez
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Message from the Chief Administrative Officer

— | am proud to present the City of Richmond's Annual Report for the
year 2017. This report details our outstanding financial position, while
highlighting our ongoing commitment to a culture of continuous

improvement through excellence, innovation and visionary leadership.

During the past year, our administration placed a strong focus on the
continued fulfilment of Council’s nine term goals. These goals place

an emphasis on community safety, economic development, financial
stewardship, sustainability, community vibrancy, partnerships and
collaboration, infrastructure, planning and citizen engagement. Major strides
were made on all these goals, which are highlighted throughout the Annual
Report.

Strong financial stewardship continues to be one of our hallmarks thanks to our Long Term Financial
Management Strategy. This Strategy has allowed us to limit property tax increases, while still making
significant investments in infrastructure and programs. Richmond's property taxes also remain among
the lowest in the region.

As part of the financial strategy, City Council continues to responsibly replenish our reserves each year
to ensure we meet the City’s long-term needs and minimize borrowing. This strategy has allowed

us to invest more than $800 million as of the five years ending in 2018 to renew and expand our
civic infrastructure. Our 2017 capital budget of $122 million included further investments in the
development of the Garden City Lands, a new signature park in the heart of our city, and the City’s
award-winning Digital Strategy, which is putting us on the cutting edge of using technology and
innovation to improve customer service and efficiency.

Our strong planning framework is also guiding the City's continued evolution. The City's population
continues to grow, reaching nearly 220,000 in 2017. Total construction value of building permits for
2017 was $709 million our fourth highest year’s total ever, with total new construction topping $4.4
billion since 2011.

This new growth has helped the City secure contributions for two new community centres, new parks,
hundreds of affordable housing units and child care spaces, public art investments and other civic
infrastructure improvements. Through a special development levy, the City is close to accumulating
the monies needed to fund an additional Canada Line station in the Capstan Village area, which will
enhance transit service and community mobility.

With our strong commitment to financial stewardship and sound community planning, we continue to
deliver services that are second to none, while providing great value for our taxpayers.

a.,

George Duncan
Chief Administrative Officer
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A ceremonial Canada Day flag raising celebrated Richmond Canada 150.
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Richmond Canada 150

In 2017, Richmond was one of the most active communities in the country as citizens from coast to
coast to coast celebrated Canada’s 150th anniversary of Confederation. In addition to dozens of local
events, the City undertook a number of legacy Richmond Canada 150 projects that will permanently
enrich the community. A special grants program provided assistance to local community organizations
to host their own celebratory events and/or complete legacy programs. The Richmond Canada 150
program was a finalist in two categories in the Canadian Event Industry Awards for 2017. The photos
on this page include some of the highlights from the Richmond Canada 150.

qéﬂi!.y }?‘ﬁhnh .

Japan'’s Kaiwo Maru tall ship made a rare overseas visit to The Fraser Giant was unveiled, depicting the large sturgeon
Richmond. that live in local waters.

B

Noted maritime artist John Horton produced a painting A Pioneer Luncheon honoured thousands of longtime
depicting Richmond’s marine heritage. Richmond residents.
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2017 Awards

The City of Richmond is committed to its vision to
be the most appealing, livable and well-managed
community in Canada. In 2017, this commitment
was again recognized by our peers and others
with numerous international, national and
provincial awards recognizing outstanding service
delivery.

Of particular note, Richmond continued to
receive global recognition for innovative energy
programs, including our district energy program
and other initiatives aimed at reducing both
corporate and community energy use. Over
the past five years, the City has received more
than 15 awards for its various energy programs.
Richmond received four new energy-related
awards in 2017, including:
e Association of Energy Engineers Canada Region
Institutional Energy Management Award;

e A 4

e Community Energy Association 2017 Climate
and Energy Action Award;

¢ Union of British Columbia Municipalities
Leadership & Innovation — Green Initiative
Award, Honourable Mention; and

e Canadian Consulting Engineering Award of
Excellence.

Additional 2017 Awards

World Leisure Community of

Excellence for 2017

The City of Richmond was designated as a World
Leisure Community of Excellence for 2017 by the
World Leisure Organization. This title recognizes
Richmond’s successful use of leisure to improve
its citizens’ quality of life.

&

i

The Alexandra District Energy Utility was expanded to provide service to a major new retail complex.
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2017 Accessible Cities Award

The Rick Hansen Foundation Accessible Cities
Award recognizes municipalities that are

leaders in planning accessibility into their built
environments and encouraging their communities
to be more inclusive. The Richmond Olympic

Oval was also recognized in the award'’s Circle

of Excellence as a ‘best in class’ example of
accessible and inclusive community places or
spaces.

2017 Bill Woycik Outstanding Facility Award

Richmond's City Centre Community Centre
was recognized with the 2017 Bill Woycik
Outstanding Facility Award. The award is
presented annually by the Recreation Facilities
Association of BC to one outstanding new or
newly renovated recreation, sport or leisure
facility in British Columbia that exemplifies
innovations in design, energy management,
operations, revenue generation and services.

Canadian Award for Financial Reporting
and Outstanding Achievement in Popular
Annual Financial Reporting Award

The City's 2016 Annual Reports were honoured
with two awards from the Government Finance
Officers Association (GFOA) of the United States
and Canada. The City received the Canadian
Award for Financial Reporting for the 15th
consecutive year and the Award for Outstanding
Achievement in Popular Annual Financial
Reporting for the 8th year.

Finalist—Best Public Event/Fair or Festival
and Finalist—-Most Outstanding Event Over

$200,000 Public/Festival/Sporting/Cultural

The City's Richmond Canada 150 program, a
year-long program of events and other activities
celebrating Canada’s 150th anniversary, was
chosen as a finalist in two categories in the
Canadian Event Industry Awards.

Wood WORKS! BC Community

Recognition Award

Wood WORKS! BC’s awards recognize leadership
in the use of wood, both architecturally and
structurally. The City was honoured for its use

of wood in the construction of the Alexandra
District Energy Utility service building.

Developmental Disabilities Association
Employer of the Year Award

The City was honoured by the Developmental
Disabilities Association’s Jobs West division for
our City’s initiative to create opportunities for
people with developmental disabilities.

Pathways Clubhouse Recognition Award

Richmond City received the Pathways Clubhouse’s
2017 Recognition Award for the City’s role as

an employment partner; and creating workplace
opportunities for people with disabilities.

®

Government Finance Officers Association

Canadian Award
for
Financial Reporting

Presented to
City of Richmond
British Columbia

For its Annual
Financial Report
for the Year Ended

December 31, 2016

halphon P Mawitt

Executive Director/CEQ
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Council Term Goals: 2014 to 2018

The Community Charter requires that all BC 1. A Safe Community

municipalities include a statement in the Annual o . :
Maintain emphasis on community safety

Report of their objectives for the current and ) Rich 4 conti tob ‘
future years, along with measures to track O ENsUre RICMonad continues to be a sate

success towards these objectives. community.

The City of Richmond’s objectives and success 2017 Achievement

indicators are expressed through the Council The new Cambie No. 3 Fire Hall was opened. The
Term Goals. With the beginning of a new facility also hosts a BC Ambulance Station, the
four-year term of Council, a term goal setting first time these two critical emergency response
process was undertaken to help Council fulfil its agencies have been co-housed in the same facility
governance role and achieve a successful term of in an urban BC community.

office. The new Council adopted a revised set of
nine Term Goals, which provide the framework
for the City’s programs and services through
2018.

RS
“'n.

i

The Cambie No. 3 Fire Hall officially opened and includes both a fire hall and ambulance station.
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2. A Vibrant, Active, and
Connected City

Continue the development and implementation
of an excellent and accessible system of
programs, services, and public spaces that
reflect Richmond's demographics, rich heritage,
diverse needs, and unique opportunities, and
that facilitate active, caring, and connected
communities.

2017 Achievement

The Willow Early Care and Learning Centre was
opened, providing 37 spaces of licensed child
care for infants, toddlers and children. The City
now owns seven facilities providing close to 200
licensed child care spaces. Nearly 2,000 new
licensed child care spaces have been created in
Richmond since 2009 with additional facilities on
the way.

3. A Well-Planned Community

Adhere to effective planning and growth
management practices to maintain and enhance
the livability, sustainability and desirability of our
City and its neighbourhoods, and to ensure the
results match the intentions of our policies and
bylaws.

2017 Achievement

Council approved the Yuan Heng rezoning and
Development Permit for a large site at Capstan
Way and No. 3 Road. The project will create a
large mixed-use development with 964 units and
has secured a turn-key 35,000 sq. ft. community
centre to serve future residents of the Capstan
Village.

The Willow Early Care and Learning Centre was opened, part of a major expansion of child care spaces in Richmond.
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4. Leadership in Sustainability.

Continue advancement of the City’s sustainability
framework and initiatives to improve the short
and long term livability of our City, and that
maintain Richmond’s position as a leader in
sustainable programs, practices and innovations.

2017 Achievement

Lulu Island Energy Company continued to

grow with the Alexandra District Energy Utility
expanding to serve the new Cambie No. 3 Fire
Hall and a major shopping complex. The Oval
Village District Energy Utility also expanded, while
plans were put in place for a City Centre District
Energy Utility that will service more than 9 million
square feet of new development.

5. Partnerships and Collaboration
Continue development and utilization of
collaborative approaches and partnerships with
intergovernmental and other agencies to help
meet the needs of the Richmond community.

2017 Achievement

The new Storeys affordable housing complex
was opened. Three levels of government and five
not-for-profit agencies collaborated to create 129
affordable housing units and supportive services
for residents at risk of being homeless. This
unique partnership promises to serve as a model
for other cities.

6. Quality Infrastructure Networks

Continue diligence towards the development of
infrastructure networks that are safe, sustainable,
and address the challenges associated with aging
systems, population growth, and environmental
impact.

2017 Achievement

A significant extension of Lansdowne Road was
opened. This created a much-needed new east-
west corridor stretching from the Garden City
Lands to the Richmond Olympic Oval improving
mobility throughout the City Centre by offering
an important new link through the heart of the
downtown.

7. Strong Financial Stewardship

Maintain the City’s strong financial position
through effective budget processes, the efficient
and effective use of financial resources, and the
prudent leveraging of economic and financial
opportunities to increase current and long-term
financial sustainability.

2017 Achievement

Richmond retained the fifth lowest property
taxes within the region in 2017 with a 1.95% tax
increase to fund City services, plus an additional
1% tax increase to fund reserves. The 2017
budget provided for hiring of 11 additional police
officers and three additional civilian staff for
Richmond RCMP.

City of Richmond 2017 Annual Report
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Council approved hiring of 11 additional police officers.

8. Supportive Economic
Development Environment

Review, develop and implement plans, policies,
programs and practices to increase business
and visitor appeal and promote local economic
growth and resiliency.

2017 Achievement

The Richmond Olympic Oval became the primary
training home for Canada’s Women'’s Volleyball
Team. This five year agreement contributes to
the more than $300 million in Gross Domestic
Product and 400 fulltime jobs created by the
Oval. The team also hosted a sold out Grand

Prix Women'’s Volleyball Tournament featuring
national teams from four countries.

9. Well-Informed Citizenry

Continue to develop and provide programs and
services that ensure the Richmond community is
well-informed and engaged on City business and
decision making.

2017 Achievement

Through the City’s Digital Strategy an innovative
mobile inspections app was launched, allowing
inspectors to complete inspections on their smart
phones providing enhanced service to builders.

Additional information on the success indicators
in support of these objectives can be found at:
www.richmond.ca/cityhall/council/about/goals.htm.

s

AIC_ 1 AOND

Olympic Oval their home.
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Report from the General Manager,
Finance and Corporate Services

| am pleased to submit the City of Richmond’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2017, pursuant to Section 167 of the Community Charter. These statements contain
the 2017 financial results for the “City”, which include the City of Richmond, Richmond Olympic Oval
Corporation, Richmond Public Library and investment in Lulu Island Energy Company Ltd.

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and the external auditors,
KPMG LLP, have conducted an independent examination and have expressed their opinion that the
consolidated financial statements present fairly in all material respects, as at December 31, 2017 in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

The City continued to strengthen its financial position in 2017. The City’s net worth reached $3.0B
(2016: $2.8B) and cash and investments were $1.0B (2016: $997.0M). Net financial assets increased to
$698.1M (2016: $662.7M) while reserve fund balances increased to $484.9M (2016: $471.8M).

Revenues for 2017 were $523.2M (2016: $492.6M) and expenses were $413.3M (2016: $379.5M).
The increase in revenue was mainly due to exceptional development activity during 2017. Developer
contributed assets increased by $20.1M in 2017 to $52.2M and developer community amenity
contributions increased by $2.9M to $13.0M. The expense increases were mainly due to a $17.0M
contribution towards the Storeys affordable housing initiative along with increases to the RCMP
policing contract and collective agreement increases.

These financial results are a reflection of City Council's commitment to ongoing financial sustainability
through the Long Term Financial Management Strategy, which combines financial forecasting

with strategizing, thus aligning financial capacity and assets with long term service objectives and
requirements. In taking this long range financial perspective, the City expects to continue to maintain
flexibility while achieving sustainability and preparedness for any challenges that may arise.

In 2017, Richmond had the fifth lowest residential property taxes out of 21 municipalities in Metro
Vancouver and was second lowest in our comparator group of the largest five municipalities by
population.

Under the direction and guidance of City Council, the City of Richmond is well positioned to continue
to deliver a high quality of services for its current and future residents and businesses in support of the
City's vision to be the most appealing, livable and well-managed community in Canada.

A’—‘j e
Andrew Nazareth, BEc, CPA, CGA

General Manager, Finance and Corporate Services
May 14, 2018
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KPMG LLP

Metro Tower |

4710 Kingsway, Suite 2400
Burnaby BC V5H 4M2
Canada

Telephone (604) 527-3600
Fax (604) 527-3636

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Mayor and Council

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the City of
Richmond, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
December 31, 2017 and the consolidated statements of operations, changes in net
financial assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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City of Richmond
Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the City of Richmond as at December 31,
2017, and its consolidated results of operations, its changes in net consolidated financial
assets and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Kns 44X
s L

Chartered Professional Accountants

May 14, 2018

Burnaby, Canada
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CITY OF RICHMOND

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
(Expressed in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2017, with comparative figures for 2016

City of Richmond audited financial statements

2017 2016
(recast —
note 3)
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 47,867 $ 18,335
Investments (note 4) 972,783 978,638
Investment in Lulu Island Energy Company (note 5) 28,289 -
Accrued interest receivable 6,651 6,972
Accounts receivable (note 6) 27,036 27,766
Taxes receivable 8,976 9,422
Development fees receivable 22,376 16,712
Debt reserve fund - deposits (note 7) 508 508
1,114,486 1,058,353
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 8) 99,036 96,720
Development cost charges (note 9) 130,684 117,597
Deposits and holdbacks (note 10) 82,786 72,796
Deferred revenue (note 11) 66,287 66,320
Debt, net of MFA sinking fund deposits (note 12) 37,603 42,181
416,396 395,614
Net financial assets 698,090 662,739
Non-Financial Assets
Tangible capital assets (note 13) 2,251,901 2,180,026
Inventory of materials and supplies 3,762 3,138
Prepaid expenses 2,376 2,525
2,258,039 2,185,689
Accumulated surplus (note 14) $ 2,956,129 $ 2,848,428

Commitments and contingencies (note 18)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

p A

General Manager, Finance and Corporate Services
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CITY OF RICHMOND

Consolidated Statement of Operations
(Expressed in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2017, with comparative information for 2016

2017
Budget 2017 2016
(notes 2(p) (recast -
and 24) note 3)
Revenue:
Taxation and levies (note 20) $ 206,490 $ 206,901 $ 198,612
Utility fees 97,678 99,493 97,819
Sales of services 35,576 39,430 38,231
Payments-in-lieu of taxes 13,860 14,647 14,770
Provincial and federal grants 7,592 9,276 9,101
Development cost charges 18,933 15,710 16,632
Other capital funding sources 45,429 57,570 34,283
Other revenues:
Investment income 14,694 17,832 17,614
Gaming revenue 18,088 16,753 17,559
Licenses and permits 9,548 13,011 12,422
Other (note 21) 9,985 31,502 35,543
Equity income (note 5) - 1,042 -
477,873 523,167 492,586
Expenses:
Community safety 95,910 89,933 88,702
Utilities: water, sewer and sanitation 87,097 87,757 84,183
Engineering, public works and project
development 68,171 66,120 61,243
Community services 63,361 77,387 59,618
General government 60,204 51,720 45,634
Planning and development 14,275 15,417 14,233
Richmond Olympic Oval 15,652 15,331 15,120
Library services 9,983 9,619 9,788
Lulu Island Energy Company (note 2(a)) - - 943
414,653 413,284 379,464
Annual surplus 63,220 109,883 113,122
Accumulated surplus, beginning of year (note 5) 2,846,246 2,846,246 2,735,306
Accumulated surplus, end of year $ 2,909,466 $ 2,956,129 $ 2,848,428

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CITY OF RICHMOND

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets
(Expressed in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2017, with comparative information for 2016

2017
Budget 2017 2016
(notes 2(p) (recast -
and 24) note 3)
Surplus for the year $ 63,220 $ 109,883 $ 113,122
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (116,714) (110,742) (139,781)
Contributed tangible capital assets (30,610) (52,249) (32,123)
Amortization of tangible capital assets 55,892 58,012 55,960
Net gain on disposal of tangible capital assets - (3,293) (12,859)
Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets - 5,361 15,784
Reclassification of assets to LIEC as GBE - 31,036 -
Classification of LIEC as GBE (note 5) - (2,182) -
(28,212) 35,826 103
Acquisition of inventories of supplies - (3,762) (3,138)
Acquisition of prepaid expenses - (2,376) (2,525)
Consumption of inventories of supplies - 3,138 2,359
Use of prepaid expenses - 2,525 1,930
Change in net financial assets (28,212) 35,351 (1,271)
Net financial assets, beginning of year 662,739 662,739 664,010
Net financial assets, end of year $ 634,527 $ 698,090 $ 662,739

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CITY OF RICHMOND

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(Expressed in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2017, with comparative information for 2016

2017 2016
(recast —
note 3)
Cash provided by (used in):
Operations:
Annual surplus $ 109,883 $ 113,122
Items not involving cash:
Amortization 58,012 55,960
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets (3,293) (12,859)
Contributions of tangible capital assets (52,249) (32,123)
Accounting adjustments upon transition of LIEC to a GBE 5,846 -
Increase in investment in GBE (1,042) -
Change in non-cash operating working capital:
Accrued interest receivable 321 (685)
Accounts receivable 730 2,396
Taxes receivable 446 (1,412)
Development fees receivable (5,664) 4,423
Prepaid expenses 149 (595)
Inventories of supplies (624) (779)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,316 9,019
Deposits and holdbacks 9,990 13,900
Deferred revenue (33) 17,609
Development cost charges 13,087 6,006
Net change in cash from operating activities 137,875 173,982
Capital activities:
Cash used to acquire tangible capital assets (110,742) (139,781)
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets 5,361 15,784
Net change in cash from capital activities (105,381) (123,997)
Financing activities:
Decrease in debt (4,578) (4,402)
Investing activities:
Sale (purchase) of investments 5,855 (49,048)
Contribution to LIEC (4,239) -
Net change in cash from investing activities 1,616 (49,048)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 29,532 (3,465)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 18,335 21,800
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 47,867 $ 18,335

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CITY OF RICHMOND

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2017

1. Operations:

The City of Richmond (the “City”) is incorporated under the Local Government Act of British
Columbia. The City’s principal activities include the provision of local government services to
residents of the incorporated area. These include administrative, protective, transportation,
infrastructure, environmental, recreational, water, sewer, and drainage.

2. Significant accounting policies:

The consolidated financial statements of the City are the representation of management and have
been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles as
prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Board (“PSAB”) of the Chartered Professional
Accountants Canada.

(a) Basis of consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements reflect a combination of the City’s General Revenue,
General Capital and Loan, Waterworks and Sewerworks, and Reserve Funds consolidated
with the Richmond Public Library (the “Library”) and the Richmond Olympic Oval (the “Oval”).
The Library is consolidated as the Library Board is appointed by the City. The Oval is
consolidated as they are a wholly owned municipal corporation of the City and operate as an
other government organization. Interfund transactions, fund balances and activities have
been eliminated on consolidation. The City’s investment in Lulu Island Energy Company
(“LIEC”), a wholly owned government business enterprise (“GBE”), is accounted for using the
modified equity method effective for fiscal 2017. For fiscal 2016 and prior, LIEC was
consolidated into the City’s financial statements as it was classified as a government
organization (note 5).

(i) General Revenue Fund:

This fund is used to account for the current operations of the City as provided for in the
Annual Budget, including collection of taxes, administering operations, policing, and
servicing general debt.

(ii) General Capital and Loan Fund:

This fund is used to record the City's tangible capital assets and work-in-progress,
including engineering structures such as roads and bridges, and the related long-term
debt.

(iif) Waterworks and Sewerworks Funds:

These funds have been established to cover the costs of operating these utilities, with
related capital and loan funds to record the related capital assets and long-term debt.

CNCL -105
City of Richmond 2017 Annual Report 22



City of Richmond audited financial statements

CITY OF RICHMOND

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2017

2. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9

Basis of consolidation (continued):
(iv) Reserve Funds:

Certain funds are established by bylaws for specific purposes. They are funded primarily
by budgeted contributions from the General Revenue Fund and developer contributions
plus interest earned on fund balances.

Basis of accounting:

The City follows the accrual method of accounting for revenues and expenses. Revenues are
recognized in the year in which they are earned and measurable. Expenses are recognized
as they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of goods and services and/or the
creation of a legal obligation to pay.

Government transfers:

Restricted transfers from governments are deferred and recognized as revenue as the
related expenditures are incurred or the stipulations in the related agreement are met.
Unrestricted transfers are recognized as revenue when received or if the amount to be
received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, highly liquid money market investments and
short-term investments with maturities of less than 90 days from date of acquisition.

Investments:

Investments are recorded at cost, adjusted for amortization of premiums or discounts.
Provisions for losses are recorded when they are considered to be other than temporary. At
various times during the term of each individual investment, market value may be less than
cost. Such declines in value are considered temporary for investments with known maturity
dates as they generally reverse as the investments mature and therefore an adjustment to
market value for these market declines is not recorded.

Investment in government business enterprises:

Government business enterprises are recorded using the modified equity method of
accounting. The City’s investment in the GBE is recorded as the value of the GBE’s
shareholder’s equity. The investment’s income or loss is recognized by the City when it is
earned by the GBE. Inter-organizational transactions and balances are not eliminated, except
for any gains or losses on assets remaining within the City.

Accounts receivable:

Accounts receivable are net of an allowance for doubtful accounts and therefore represent
amounts expected to be collected.
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CITY OF RICHMOND

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2017

2. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(h) Development cost charges:

(i)

Development cost charges are restricted by legislation to expenditures on capital
infrastructure. These amounts are deferred upon receipt and recognized as revenue when
the expenditures are incurred in accordance with the restrictions.

Post-employment benefits:

The City and its employees make contributions to the Municipal Pension Plan. As this plan is
a multi-employee plan, contributions are expensed as incurred.

Post-employment benefits also accrue to the City’s employees. The liabilities related to these
benefits are actuarially determined based on service and best estimates of retirement ages
and expected future salary and wage increases. The liabilities under these benefits plans are
accrued based on projected benefits prorated as employees render services necessary to
earn the future benefits.

Non-financial assets:

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in
the provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are
not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations.

(i) Tangible capital assets:

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which includes amounts that are directly
attributable to acquisition, construction, development, or betterment of the assets. The
cost, less the residual value, of the tangible capital assets, excluding land are amortized
on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Asset Useful life - years
Buildings and building improvements 10-75
Infrastructure 5-100
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 3-40
Library’s collections, furniture and equipment 4-20

Amortization is charged over the asset’'s useful life commencing when the asset is
acquired. Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is available for
productive use.

(if) Contributions of tangible capital assets:

Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair value at the
date of receipt and also are recorded as revenue.
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CITY OF RICHMOND

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2017

2. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(i) Non-financial assets (continued):

(iii) Natural resources:

Natural resources are not recognized as assets in the financial statements.

(iv) Works of art and cultural and historic assets:

Works of art and cultural and historic assets are not recorded as assets in these financial
statements.

(v) Interest capitalization:

The City does not capitalize interest costs associated with the construction of a tangible
capital asset.

(vi) Labour capitalization:

Internal labour directly attributable to the construction, development or implementation of
a tangible capital asset is capitalized.

(vii) Leased tangible capital assets:

Leases which transfer substantially all of the benefits and risks incidental to ownership of
property are accounted for as leased tangible capital assets. All other leases are
accounted for as operating leases and the related payments are charged to expenses as
incurred.

(viii) Impairment of tangible capital assets:

Tangible capital assets are written down when conditions indicate that they no longer
contribute to the City’s ability to provide goods and services, or when the value of future
economic benefits associated with the tangible capital assets are less than their net book
value. The net write-downs are accounted for as expenses in the consolidated statement
of operations.

(ix) Inventory of materials and supplies:

Inventory is recorded at cost, net of an allowance for obsolete stock. Cost is determined
on a weighted average basis.
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CITY OF RICHMOND

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2017

2. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(k)

U

Revenue recognition:

Revenues are recognized in the period in which the transactions or events occurred that gave
rise to the revenues. All revenues are recorded on an accrual basis, except when the
accruals cannot be determined with a reasonable degree of certainty or when their estimation
is impractical.

The City is required to act as the agent for the collection of certain taxes and fees imposed by
other authorities. Collections for other authorities are excluded from the City’s taxation
revenues.

Property taxes:

The City establishes property tax rates based on assessed market values provided by the
British Columbia Assessment Authority (BCA). Market values are determined as of July 15t of
each year. The City records taxation revenue at the time the property tax bills are issued and
the City is entitled to collect interest and penalties on overdue taxes.

(m) Deferred revenue:

(n)

(0)

(P)

The City defers a portion of the revenue collected from permits, licenses and other fees and
recognizes this revenue in the year in which related inspections are performed or other
related expenditures are incurred.

Deferred revenue also represents funds received from external parties for specified
purposes. These revenues are recognized in the period in which the related expenses are
incurred.

Deposits:

Receipts restricted by the legislation of senior governments or by agreement with external
parties are deferred and reported as deposits and are refundable under certain
circumstances. When qualifying expenditures are incurred, deposits are recognized as
revenue at amounts equal to the qualifying expenditures.

Debt:
Debt is recorded net of related sinking fund balances.
Budget information:

Budget information, presented on a basis consistent with that used for actual results, was
included in the City’'s 5 Year Consolidated Financial Plan (2017-2021) (“Consolidated
Financial Plan”) and was adopted through Bylaw No. 9663 on February 14, 2017.
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CITY OF RICHMOND

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2017

2. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(gq) Contaminated sites:

(r)

(s)

Contaminated sites are a result of contamination being introduced into air, soil, water, or
sediment of a chemical, organic or radioactive material of live organism that exceeds an
environmental standard. Liabilities are recorded net of any expected recoveries.

A liability for remediation of contaminated sites is recognized when a site is not in productive
use and the following criteria are met:

(i) An environmental standard exists;

(if) Contamination exceeds the environmental standard;

(iii) The City is directly responsible or accepts responsibility;

(iv) It is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and
(v) A reasonable estimate of the amount can be made.

The liability is recognized as management’s estimate of the cost of post-remediation including
operation, maintenance and monitoring that are an integral part of the remediation strategy
for a contaminated site.

Use of accounting estimates:

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amount of revenue and expenditures during the reporting period. Significant areas requiring
the use of management estimates relate to the value of contributed tangible capital assets,
value of developer contributions, useful lives for amortization, determination of provisions for
accrued liabilities, performing actuarial valuation of employee future benefits, allowance for
doubtful accounts, and provision for contingencies. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Adjustments, if any, will be reflected in the financial statements in the period that
the change in estimate is made, as well as in the period of settlement if the amount is
different.

Segment disclosures:

A segment is defined as a distinguishable activity or group of activities of a government for
which it is appropriate to separately report financial information to achieve the objectives of
the standard. The City has provided definitions of segments as well as presented financial
information in segment format.
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CITY OF RICHMOND

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2017

3. Recast of comparative figures:

Tangible capital assets:

During the year, the City determined that certain tangible capital assets had been omitted from its

asset registers.

The impact of these immaterial errors has been recorded retrospectively and prior periods have

been recast as follows:

Accumulated surplus at January 1, 2016:

Accumulated surplus, as previously reported $ 2,731,194
Net book value of tangible capital assets not previously recorded 4,112
Accumulated surplus, as recast $ 2,735,306
Annual surplus for 2016:
Annual surplus, as previously reported $ 105,467
Recognition of contributed capital assets, net of amortization expense 7,655
Annual surplus, as recast $ 113,122
Tangible capital assets at December 31, 2016:
Tangible capital assets, as previously reported $ 2,168,259
Net book value of tangible capital assets not previously recorded 11,767
Tangible capital assets, as recast $ 2,180,026
Investments:
2017 2016
Market Market
Cost value Cost value
Short-term notes and deposits $ 499,541 $ 488,215 $ 473,721 $ 473,409
Government and government
guaranteed bonds 177,648 178,246 213,542 216,895
Municipal Finance Authority
Pooled Investment 45,065 43,943 44172 43,834
Other Bonds 250,529 249,120 247,203 249,235
$ 972,783 $ 959,524 $ 978,638 $ 983,373
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CITY OF RICHMOND

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2017

5. Investment in Lulu Island Energy Company Ltd:

The City owns 100% of the issued and outstanding shares of LIEC, which was incorporated
under the British Columbia Company Act on August 19, 2013. LIEC develops, manages and
operates district energy utilities in the City of Richmond on the City’s behalf.

Summarized financial information relating to LIEC is as follows:

2017 2016
Cash, cash equivalents, and investments $ 6,227 $ 170
Accounts receivable 1,488 696
Tangible capital assets 32,033 31,256
Total assets 39,748 32,122
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,550 1,194
Deferred contributions 3,522 2,686
Concession liability 6,387 5,234
Total liabilities 11,459 9,114
Shareholder’s equity $ 28,289 $ 23,008
Total revenue $ 4,224 $ 800
Total expenses 3,182 822
Net income (loss) $ 1,042 $ (22)

Included in the City’s consolidated statement of financial position are payables to LIEC in the
amount of $360,766 (2016 - nil).

During 2016, LIEC was considered a government organization and was accounted for in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the PSAB
of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada, and consolidated in the financial
statements of the City.
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CITY OF RICHMOND

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2017

City of Richmond audited financial statements

5.

Investment in Lulu Island Energy Company Ltd. (continued):

Effective January 1, 2017, LIEC is classified as a GBE and its financial information is no longer
consolidated with the City’s financial information. The City’s investment in LIEC as a GBE is
accounted for using the modified equity method. The adjustments to opening 2017 accumulated

surplus are as follows:

Accumulated surplus at January 1, 2017:

Accumulated surplus, as at December 31, 2016 $ 2,848,428
Accounting changes to opening accumulated surplus due
to LIEC’s transition to GBE (2,182)
Adjusted opening accumulated surplus, as at January 1, 2017 $ 2,846,246
Accounts receivable:
2017 2016
Water and sewer utilities $ 12,661 $ 12,541
Casino revenues 4,025 3,951
Capital grant 2,929 2,345
Other trade receivables 7,421 8,929
$ 27,036 $ 27,766

Debt reserve fund deposits and contingent demand notes:

The City issues its debt instruments through the Municipal Finance Authority (the “MFA”). As a
condition of these borrowings, a portion of the debenture proceeds is withheld by the MFA in a
Debt Reserve Fund. The City also executes demand notes in connection with each debenture
whereby the City may be required to loan certain amounts to the MFA. These demand notes are
contingent in nature and are not reflected in the City’s accounts. The details of the cash deposits
and contingent demand notes at December 31, 2017 are as follows:

Contingent

Cash demand

deposits notes

General Revenue Fund $ 508 $ 2,447
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CITY OF RICHMOND

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2017

8. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities:

2017 2016
Trade and other liabilities $ 68,618 $ 65,417
Post-employment benefits (note 16) 30,418 31,303

$ 99,036 $ 96,720

9. Development cost charges:

2017 2016

Balance, beginning of year $ 117,597 $ 111,591
Contributions 26,866 20,886
Interest 1,931 1,752
Revenue recognized (15,710) (16,632)
Balance, end of year $ 130,684 $ 117,597

10. Deposits and holdbacks:

Balance Balance

December 31, Deposit Refund/ December 31,

2016  contributions  expenditures 2017

Security deposits $ 50,970 $ 21,932 $ 14,819 $ 58,083
Developer contribution 5,643 7,290 5,224 7,709
Contract holdbacks 5,764 60 - 5,824

Transit Oriented Development

Fund 1,057 - 995 62
Other 9,362 11,276 9,530 11,108
$ 72,796 $ 40,558 $ 30,568 $ 82,786
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(Tabular amounts expressed in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2017

City of Richmond audited financial statements

1.

12,

Deferred revenue:

Balance External Revenue Balance

December 31, restricted earned/ December 31,

2016 infows  adjustments 2017

Taxes and Utilities $ 19,888 $ 19,613 $ 19,888 $ 19,613
Building permits/development 12,767 6,928 5,969 13,726
Oval 5,819 11,056 10,360 6,515
Capital grants 21,094 4,631 5,447 20,278
Business licenses 2,485 2,109 2,084 2,510
Parking easement/leased land 2,421 47 45 2,423
Other 1,846 8,164 8,788 1,222
$ 66,320 $ 52,548 $ 52,581 $ 66,287

Debt, net of MFA sinking fund deposits:

The interest rate for the year ended December 31, 2017 on the principal amount of the MFA
debentures was 3.30% per annum. Interest expense incurred for the year on the long-term debt

was $1,676,895 (2016 - $1,676,895).

The City obtains debt instruments through the MFA pursuant to security issuing bylaws under
authority of the Community Charter to finance certain c